DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 075 329

SO 005 846

TITLE

Research and Publications in New York State History

1971-72.

INSTITUTION

New York State Education Dept., Albany. Office of

State History.

PUB DATE

NOTE

72 45p.

EDRS PRICE

MF-\$0.65 HC-\$3.29

DESCRIPTORS

*Area Studies; *Bibliographies; Research Projects;

Research Reviews (Publications): *United States

History

IDENTIFIERS

*New York; State History

AESTRACT

This is the fourth annual edition of a compilation which started twenty years ago as a listing of reported work in progress and was published in the summer issues of "New York History". Titles of works completed and published were added in 1969. This present list includes citations of articles, books, pamphlets and theses reported for the period May 1, 1971 through April 30, 1972. The publication, which includes 479 titles and topics, is divided into sections on: architecture and the arts; biography; cities, towns and counties (except in New York City); New York City; economic life; education; government and politics; military affairs; religion and churches; Indians; statewide and miscellaneous studies; publishers of books and periodicals cited. A related document is ED 044 345. (Author/OPH)

54005846

TALL IN THE STATE OF THE STATE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
EDUCATION & WELFARE
OFFICE OF EDUCATION
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REPRO
DUCED EXACTLY AS RECEIVED FROM
THE PERSON OR ORGANIZATION ORIG
INATING IT POINTS OF VIEW OR OPIN
IONS STATED DO NOT NECESSARILY
REPRESENT OFFICIAL OFFICE OF EDU
CATION POSITION OR POLICY

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATIONS
in
NEW YORK STATE HISTORY

1971-1972

The University of the State of New York
The State Education Department
Office of State History
99 Washington Avenue
Albany, New York 12210
1972



THE UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Regents of the University (with years when terms expire)
1984 Joseph W. McGovern, A.B., J.D., L.H.D., LL.D., D.C.L., Chancellor New York
1985 Everett J. Penny, B.C.S., D.C.S., Vice Chancellor
1978 Alexander J. Allan, Jr., LL.D., Litt.D Troy 1973 Charles W. Millard, Jr., A.B., LL.D., L.H.D Buffalo 1987 Carl H. Pforzheimer, Jr., A.B., M.B.A., D.C.S.,
H.H.D
1976 Mrs. Helen B. Power, A.B., Litt.D., L.H.D., LL.D
1986 Kenneth B. Clark, A.B., M.S., Ph.D., LL.D., L.H.D., D.Sc
LL.D
President of the University and Commissioner of Education Ewald B. Nyquist
Executive Deputy Commissioner of Education Gordon M. Ambach
Associate Commissioner for Cultural Education John G. Broughton
Assistant Commissioner for State History Louis L. Tucker
Principal Historian Thomas E. Felt



PREFACE

This is the fourth annual edition of a compilation which started 20 years ago as a listing of reported work in progress and was published in the summer issues of New York History. With the beginning of separate publication in 1969, titles of works completed and published were added.

The present list covers topics and titles reported for the period May 1, 1971, through April 30, 1972. A few copies of the 1970-1971 edition are available on request; earlier editions are now out of print.

Criteria for selecting material for inclusion may be most clearly expressed in terms of limits and exclusions:

- (1.) Research in progress must be described to us briefly but clearly as to its scope and limits, and it should represent work beyond the normal or routine services of official Local Historians. Work listed 1 year is not repeated in subsequent listings until it is reported as completed.
- (2.) Narratives or analyses of very recent events are excluded unless they present data or perspectives unavailable in journalistic accounts and commentaries.
- (3.) Projects and publications are excluded if they deal only incidentally with New York, or primarily with the activities of New Yorkers unrelated to the State's history.
- (4.) Reprints and new editions are selected for their breadth of interest and availability.
- (5.) Juvenile literature on the State's past has not been systematically included.
- (6.) Primarily genealogical publications and projects have not been listed.
- (7.) Audiovisual materials are listed in another recent publication from the Office of State History and the Bureau of Secondary Curriculum Development, Sights and Sounds of New York History.

What remains is nevertheless considerable. The 1971-72 listings in the following pages include 479 titles and topics. This is the largest number to date, and while more thorough searching on our part may account for part of the increase, the impression that more is being written seems justified.



Emphasizing quantities obscures the special achievements of a relatively few scholars each year whose work promises to have lasting value for students of New York's History. This is not the place to award prizes, but attention should be called to an especially cogent interpretive article such as Milton Klein's "New York in the American Colonies: A New Look" (listing M-32), a political history such as Patricia Bonomi's A Factious People (H-3), or Warren Moscov's The Last of the Big Time Bosses (B-45), cultural history of the quality of Alice P. Kenney's The Gansevoorts of Albany (B-34), Nathan Huggins' Harlem Renaissance (E-14), and reference tools of the precision and usefulness of Sylvia G. Faibisoff and Susan Feldman's "Bibliography of Newspapers in Fourteen New York State Counties" (D-14).

Researchers interested in receiving blank forms for listing their work in progress or completed during the year starting May 1, 1972, may write to the Office of State History at any time. Forms will be sent near the end of the year to all officially appointed Local Historians, to historical societies, and to members of the College Conference on New York History.

Information on work in progress depends entirely on volunteer contributions by researchers. The listing forms distributed annually by the Office of State History to those on its mailing lists are intended as guides and reminders; their use is not required. Readers of this publication may refer to the entries themselves for guidance as to the information needed: The researcher's name and address, the title (tentatively, if necessary), a brief note clarifying the scope of the work, and if known, the form and estimated date of completion (ECD). A letter giving this information will suffice, and will be in time for the next compilation if it reaches this office by May 10, 1973.

The cooperation of a great many individuals has given this compilation such usefulness as it has. Of the Office of State History staff, Lawrence Yakaitis has carried the main burden of the work with patience and thoroughness. In the State Library, the help of Mrs. Adele Jackel deserves special acknowledgement.

Thomas E. Felt Principal Historian



CONTENTS

PREFACE	iii
ARCHITECTURE AND THE ARTS	1
BIOGRAPHY	3
CITIES AND TOWNS (Except New York City)	8
COUNTIES (Except in New York City)	21
NEW YORK CITY	24
ECONOMIC LIFE	26
EDUCATION	26
GOVERNMENT AND POLITICS	27
MILITARY AFFAIRS	29
RELIGION AND CHURCHES	31
INDIANS	31
STATEWIDE AND MISCELLANEOUS STUDIES	32
PUBLISHERS OF BOOKS CITED	37
PUBLISHERS OF PERIODICALS CITED	38



ARCHITECTURE AND THE ARTS

- A-1. Anonymous. "Adirondack Lakes Center for the Arts." [At Blue Mountain Lake.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- A-2. Byrne, Peggy. "Pat Reynold's Experiments Sell." [Adirondack Artist.] Adirondack Life, Summer 1971.
- A-3. Conover, Jewel H. "Nineteenth-Century Houses in Western New York." State University of New York Press. (1972 reprint of 1966 edition).
- A-4. Craven, Wayne. "Asher B. Durand's Career as an Engraver." [1776-1886.] American Art Journal, Spring 1971.
- A-5. Downs, Arthur C. The Architecture and Life of the Honorable Thornton MacNess Niven, 1806-1895. Orange County Community of Museums & Galleries, Goshen, N. Y. 10924. (pamphlet, 1971).
- A-6. "Suffolk Sought an Architect." [Thornton MacNess Niven, 1806-95, to build County Court House.]
 Long Island Forum, July 1971.
- A-7. Fehl, Phillip. "John Trumbull and Robert Ball Hughes's Restoration of the Statue of Pitt the Elder." [N.Y.C.] New York Historical Society Quarterly, Jan. 1972.
- A-8. Feigenbaum, Rita. American Portraits: A Catalogue of Early Portraits in the Collections of Union College. Union College Press. (book, 1972).
- A-9. Fein, Albert. Frederick Law Olmsted and the American Environmental Tradition. George Braziller. (book, 1972).
- A-10. Fitchen, John. The New World Dutch Barn. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- A-11. Fitzgerald, Rosemary. "Artist John Bradley and the Totten Portraits." [Totten family of Staten Island.] Staten Island Historian, Jan.-March 1971.
- A-12. Goldstone, Jarmon H. "The Marriage of New Buildings with Old." [N.Y.C.] Historic Preservation, Jan.-March 1971.
- A-13. Harriman, Jannea R. The Art of William Richardson Tyler, 1825-1896. [Exhibition catalogue.] Rensselaer County Historical Society, 59 Second St., Troy, N. Y. 12180.
- A-14. Hewett, Marie. "Pictorial Reporter: George Catlin in Western New York." [1824-29.] Niagara Frontier, Winter 1970.



- A-15. Inverarity, Robert B. Winslow Homer in the Adirondacks.
 Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press, Blue
 Mountain Lake, N. Y. 12812. (book, 1971).
- A-16. Jaffe, Irma B. "Fordham University's Trumbull Drawings; Mistaken Identities in The Declaration of Independence and Other Discoveries." [John Trumbull] American Art Journal, Spring 1971.
- A-17. The Landmark Society of Western New York, Inc. Architecture Worth Saving in Monroe County. 130 Spring St., Rochester, N. Y. 14608. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- A-18. . The Campbell-Whittlesey House. [History of Rochester house and description of architecture and furnishings.] 130 Spring St., Rochester, N. Y. 14608. (booklet, 1972).
- A-19.

 in historic area of Rochester East Avenue Preservation District.] 130 Spring St., Rochester, N. Y. 14608. (pamphlet, 1972).
- A-20. Lukens, Catherine. "Half Way House." [Between Ogdensburg and Canton.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- A-21. Meader, Robert F.W. An Illustrated Guide to Shaker Furniture. Dover Publications, 180 Varick St., New York, N. Y. 10014. (book, 1972).
- A-22. Moffett, Warren C. [Architectural Survey of Town of Aurora, Erie County.] Roycroft Campus, East Aurora, N. Y. 14052. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1973).
- A-23. New York State Council on the Arts and Syracuse University School of Architecture. Architecture Worth Saving in Onon-daga County. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- A-24. O'Brien, Peggy. "Alexander Wyant, 1836-1892: Capturing the Great North Woods." [Adirondack painter.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- A-25. . "Durand in the Adirondacks." [Asher Brown Durand, 1796-1886.] Adirondack Life, Summer 1971.
- A-26. Reich, Sheldon. "Abraham Walkowitz: Pioneer of American Modernism." [1880-1965; lived in and painted scenes of N.Y.C.] American Art Journal, Spring 1971.
- A-27. Robinson, Cervin. "Late Cast Iron in New York." Journal of the Society of Architectural Historians, May 1971.



- A-28. Roslyn Landmark Society. Roslyn Landmark Society House Tour 1972. Papermill Rd., Roslyn, N. Y. 11576. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- A-29. Ryan, Melinda. "The Fabulous Loon Lake House." York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- A-30. Vlach, John M. "Fenimore Cooper's Leatherstocking as Folk Hero." New York Folklore Quarterly, Dec. 1271.
- A-31. Weston, Harold. "Freedom in the Wilds: A Saga of the Adirondacks." [Artist's Adirondack experience.]
 Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- A-32. Wisbey, Herbert A. "Jerome D. Fielding, Artist." [1822-70; portrait painter of Brockport, Monroe Co.] York State Tradition, Winter 1972.
- SEE ALSO: C-82; C-169; D-6; D-13; D-18; E-12; E-14.

BIOGRAPHY

- B-1. Anonymous. "George Washington's Ferryman." [William McConkey, d. 1825, of Glen, Montgomery Co.] The Correspondent, Autumn 1971.
- B-2. Armstrong, Frederick. "Pioneer Entrepreneur: George Redington of Waddington." [1798-1850.] The Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, July 1971.
- B-3. Armstrong, William M. "The Letters of Edwin L. Godkin: A Calendar and Locator File." [Late 19th century editor of The Nation, New York Sun, and New York Evening Post.]
 Bulletin of the New York Public Library, Sept. 1971.
- B-4. Austin, Anne L. The Woolsey Sisters of New York. [Nursing and social service work 1860-1900.] Memoirs of the American Philosophical Society, Vol. 85, 1971. (book).
- B-5. Barnett, Lincoln. "The Case of John Peter Zenger." [Printer involved in freedom of press case, N.Y.C. 1735.] American Heritage, Dec. 1971.
- B-6. Brenan, Dan (ed.) The Adirondack Letters of George Washington Sears, Whose Pen Name was "Nessmuk." Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- B-7. Buckley, Peter B. Daniel A. Reed and Political Conservatism. [Congressman, 1919-59.] Cornell University, Ithaca, N. Y. 14850. (Ph.D. thesis, 1972).



- B-8. Champagne, Roger. Alexander McDougall. [1732-86.] Illinois State Normal Univ., Normal, Ill. 61761. (book in progress).
- B-9. Cole, Donald B. Biography of Martin Van Buren. 63 Court St., Exeter, N. H. 03833. (book in progress).
- B-10. Curran, Thomas J. "The Diary of Henry Van Der Lyn."
 [1784-1865.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1971.
- B-11. Delp, Robert W. "Andrew Jackson Davis' Revelations, Harbinger of American Spiritualism." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, July 1971.
- B-12. DeMers, Donald O. The Political and Business Career of William Holt Averell, 1794-1873. [N.Y.S. bank commissioner and local politician.] Faculty Apt. A-2, College Ave. & Sixth St., Elmira, N.Y. 14901. (M.A. thesis, 1971).
- B-13. Elliot, Jean. "First Graduate of West Point." [Joseph G. Swift, 1783-1865.] Westchester Historian, Spring 1972.
- B-14. Ellis, David M. "Elkanah Watson, Pioneer." [Entrepreneur, Port Kent, N. Y., 1758-1843.] York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- B-15. Everest, Allan S. The Life and Times of Moses Hazen. [1733-1803; commander of Second Continental Canadian Regiment recruited from Albany.] State University College, Plattsburgh, N.Y. 12901. (book in progress).
- B-16. Funk, Robert E. "William A. Ritchie: A Valediction."
 [Former N.Y.S. Archeologist; includes bibliography.]
 New York State Archeological Association Bulletin, July
 1971.
- B-17. Hallenback, Elsie O. "Betsy Reynolds Voorhees." [1790-1858, Veddersburg, N. Y.; suffragist and abolitionist.]
 Daughters of the American Revolution Magazine, March 1972.
- B-18. Hamilton, Milton W. Sir William Johnson. [Biography, 2 vols.] 6 Olde Coach Rd., Glenmont, N.Y. 12077. (book in progress, ECD 1974).
- B-19. Harcourt, Felice (ed.) Memoirs of Madame de La Tour du Pin. [French emigré who resided near Albany for some years.] McCall Publishing Co. (book, 1972).
- B-20. Hawke, David F. Benjamin Rush: Revolutionary Gadfly. [1746-1813, physician, politician, founder of Union College.] Bobbs-Merrill Co. (book, 1971).
- B-21. Hawkins, George J. "Forest Femme Fatale." [Adirondack Guide Julia Burton, 1896-1969.] Adirondack Life, Fall 1971.



- B-22. Hills, William P. "Beman Brockway, 19th Century Editor, the Society's First President." [Jefferson County Historical Society, 1886-92.] Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, July 1971.
- B-23. Hirsch, Mark D. Charles Francis Murphy: The Political Career of a Tammany "Boss." Bronx Community College, Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-24. Richard Croker: A study of a Tammany Hall "Boss." Bronx Community College, Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-25. Hislop, Codman. Eliphalet Nott: A Biography. [1773-1866; Union College president.] Wesleyan Univ. Press, Middletown, Conn. 06457. (book, 1971).
- B-26. Holway, John. "Bill Holland." [N.Y. Yankee pitcher.] New York Folklore Quarterly, Sept. 1971.
- B-27. Jackson, Herbert G., Jr. The Spirit Rappers. [Fox sisters of Rochester.] Doubleday & Co. (book, 1972).
- B-28. Janitz, John. "Lyman A. Spalding, The Samuel Pepys of Lockport, N.Y." [1800-85.] The Courier, April 1971.
- B-29. Jordan, David M. Roscoe Conkling of New York: Voice in the Senate. [1829-88.] Cornell University Press. (book, 1971).
- B-30. Judd, Jacob. A Biographical Study of Frederick and Adolph Philipse. [Their commercial and political importance in development of New York, 1650-1750.] Herbert H. Lehman Col., CUNY, Bedford Park Blvd. W., Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-31. "Frederick Philipse and the Madagascar Trade." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, Oct. 1971.
- B-32. Katz, Stanley N. "A New York Mission to England: The London Letters of Lewis Morris to James Alexander, 1735-1736." William and Mary Quarterly, July 1971.
- B-33. Keith, Herbert A. Man of the Woods. [Autobiography of an Adirondack guide.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1972.).
- B-34. Kenney, Alice P. The Gansevoorts of Albany: Dutch Patricians in the Upper Hudson Valley. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).



- B-22. Hills, William P. "Beman Brockway, 19th Century Editor, the Society's First President." [Jefferson County Historical Society, 1886-92.] Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, July 1971.
- B-23. Hirsch, Mark D. Charles Francis Murphy: The Political Career of a Tammany "Boss." Bronx Community College, Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-24.

 Richard Croker: A study of a Tammany
 Hall "Boss." Bronx Community College, Bronx, N.Y. 10468.

 (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-25. Hislop, Codman. Eliphalet Nott: A Biography. [1773-1866; Union College president.] Wesleyan Univ. Press, Middletown, Conn. 06457. (book, 1971).
- B-26. Holway, John. "Bill Holland." [N.Y. Yankee pitcher.] New York Folklore Quarterly, Sept. 1971.
- B-27. Jackson, Herbert G., Jr. The Spirit Rappers. [Fox sisters of Rochester.] Doubleday & Co. (book, 1972).
- B-28. Janitz, John. "Lyman A. Spalding, The Samuel Pepys of Lockport, N.Y." [1800-85.] The Courier, April 1971.
- B-29. Jordan, David M. Roscoe Conkling of New York: Voice in the Senate. [1829-88.] Cornell University Press. (book, 1971).
- B-30. Judd, Jacob. A Biographical Study of Frederick and Adolph Philipse. [Their commercial and political importance in development of New York, 1650-1750.] Herbert H. Lehman Col., CUNY, Bedford Park Blvd. W., Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-31. "Frederick Philipse and the Madagascar Trade." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, Oct. 1971.
- B-32. Katz, Stanley N. "A New York Mission to England: The London Letters of Lewis Morris to James Alexander, 1735-1736." William and Mary Quarterly, July 1971.
- B-33. Keith, Herbert A. Man of the Woods. [Autobiography of an Adirondack guide.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1972.).
- B-34. Kenney, Alice P. The Gansevoorts of Albany: Dutch Patricians in the Upper Hudson Valley. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).





- B-35. Klein, Milton M. Archibald Kennedy: Imperial Pamphleteer. [18th century New York royal offical; essay in The Colonial Legacy, vol. II, ed. by Lawrence H. Leder.]

 Harper & Row. (book, 1971).
- B-36. Knowles, Phyllis B. The Masterton Family--A Story of the Quarrying Industry and the Story of an Early Architect-Builder. [Eastchester, N.Y.] 1217 California Rd., Eastchester, N.Y. 10709. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-37. The Landmark Society of Western New York, Inc. The Story of Benjamin Campbell. [Illustrated booklet for children on life of Rochester merchant-miller, Benjamin Campbell (1790-1883).] 130 Spring St., Rochester, N.Y. 14608. (booklet in progress, ECD 1973).
- B-38. Larkin, Daniel F. John B. Jervis. [Engineer and industrialist.] History Dept., State Univ. College, Oneonta, N. Y. 13820. (Ph.D. thesis in progress; ECD 1973).
- B-39. Le Viness, J. Leonard. "The Underhills of Hartsdal ϵ ." Westchester Historian, Spring 1971.
- B-40. Lewis, W. David. "George Washington Kirchwey." [Sketch for future supplement to <u>Dictionary of American Biography.</u>]
 Dept. of History, Auburn Univ., Auburn, Ala. 36830.
- B-41. "Lewis E. Lawes." [5' etch for future supplement to Dictionary of American Liveraphy.] Dept. of History, Auburn Univ., Auburn, Ala. 16830.
- B-42. Lyon, Robert L. "Nessmuk." [George Washington Sears, 1821-90, Adirondack writer and conservationist.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- B-43. Mellon, Robert. "Mountain Maestro of Hudson Falls." [Howard Martingdale.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- B-44. Moffat, George. "Alfred B. Street: Poet of the Adirondacks." [1811-82.] The Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, July 1971.
- B-45. Molinoff, Katherine. "Minister of the Gospel Doctor of Medicine: Ezekiel Skinner (1777-1855). [Greenport, N. Y.] Long Island Forum, Feb. 1972.
- B-46. Moscow, Warren. The Last of the Big-Time Bosses: The Life and Times of Carmine De Sapio and the Rise and Fall of Tammany Hall. Stein & Day. (book, 1971).
- B-47. Mushkat, Jerome. "Epitaphs by Mordecai Noah." [N.Y.C. political journalist, ca. 1827-50.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, July 1971.



- B-48. Myers, Frances B. "Elmira's Remarkable Dr. Anna Stuart." Chemung Historical Journal, June 1971.
- B-49. Nelson, Paul D. "The Gates-Arnold Quarre 1777." New-York Historical Society Quart 1971.
- B-50. Noyes, George W. (ed.) The Religious Experience of John Humphrey Noyes. [1811-86; founder of the Oneida Community.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1923 ed.).
- B-51. Pierce, Richard A. "New Light on Nils von Schoultz." [1807-38, of Salina (Syracuse); hung for taking part in "Patriot" raid into Canada.] The Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, July 1971.
- B-52. Poulin, Francis A. Webster Wagner, Car Builder, Hotel Keeper and State Senator. 1259 Wing Ave., Schenectady, N.Y. 12303. (MS. in progress, ECD 1972).
- B-53. Rooney, Gerald F. "Daniel Denton, Publicist of Colonial New York." [1640-96; in 1670 wrote A Brief Description of New-York: Formerly called New-Netherland, the first account published in English.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, July 1971.
- B-54. Roseberry, Cecil R. Glenn Curtiss: Pioneer of Flight. Doubleday & Co. (book, 1972).
- B-55. Sayward, Nick. "William Gilliland -- Tory or Patriot?" [Champlain valley landowner, d. 1796.] York State Tradition, Winter 1972.
- B-56. Sievers, Harry J. (ed.) Six New Yorkers in the White House. Fordham University, Bronx, N.Y. 10458. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- B-57. Smith, Dorothy B. The Wilder Family Story. [Burke, N.Y.] 60 Franklin St., Malone, N.Y. 12953 (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- B-58. Sneller, Anne G. A Vanished World. [Portraits, photographic and literary, of the Sneller family of Onondaga County.] Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- B-59. Steele, Vern. "Women in the American Revolution: Cornelia Van Cortlandt Beekman." York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- B-60. "Women in the American Revolution: Catherine Schuyler." York State Tradition, Fall 1971.



- B-61. Stelter, John H. Rev. Davenport Phelps: Lawyer, Missionary, Freemason. [1755-1813; d. Pultneyville, N.Y.] 180 Genesee St., Geneva, N.Y. 14456. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- B-62. Taylor, Dorothy. "Noah LaCasse: Presidential Hiki: Mate." [Adirondack guide who led T. Roosevelt up Mt. Marcy in 1901.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- B-63. Tucker, Louis L. "Madame Riedesel and the Revolution." [Charlotte Louise Von Hassau Riedesel, wife of General in Burgoyne's army.] Knickerbocker News-Union Star, June 14, 1971.
- B-64. Valentine, Harriet G. "The Young Major André." [1751-80.] Long Island Forum, Oct. 1971.
- B-65. Van Zandt, Roland. The Letters of Aaron Burr. 173
 Riverside Dr., New York, N.Y. 10024. (book in progress).
- B-66. Wagman, Morton. "The Rise of Pieter Claessen Wyckoff: Social Mobility on the Colonial Frontier." [1636-94, Brooklyn.] New York History, Jan. 1972.
- B-67. Welsh, Peter C. "Henry R. Robinson: Printmaker to the Whig Party." [Political caricaturist; worked in N.Y.C. ca. 1831-49.] New York History, Jan. 1972.
- B-68. Wiggin, Bernard L. "Albert J. Myer, Pioneer Meteorologist." [1828-80, of Buffalo.] Niagara Frontier, Winter 1970.
- B-69. Wisbey, Herbert A., Jr. "Frances M. Whitcher, the 'Widow Bedott.'" [1811-52, writer of hymer, lived in Elmira.] 4300 Fairway La., Horseheads, N 14845. (article in progress, ECD 1972).
- B-70. Worth, James M. "James M. Worth: Whaleman." [Born 1820.] Long Island Forum, Jan. 1972.
- SEE ALSO: A-2; A-5; A-9; A-13; A-24; A-25; A-31; A-32; C-3; C-82; C-95; C-108; G-1; H-13; J-14; M-11; M-13; M-22; M-46.

CITIES AND TOWNS (Except New York City)

- C-1. Ackerman, David H. "The Story of Alpina [N.Y.] and the Black River and St. Lawrence Railway Co." Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, April 1971.
- C-2. Alden Historical Society. A History of the Town of Alden. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).



- C-3. Aldrich, James M. "Southampton Calls a New Pastor."
 [Joshua Williams to the Presbyterian Church in 1784.]
 Long Island Forum, Oct. 1971.
- C-4. Aldrich, Ross. "Literary Traditions of Old Oswego."
 [J.F. Cooper's Leatherstocking Tales.] York State Tradition, Winter 1972. (reprinted from Oswego Palladium-Times).
- C-5. Anderson, Doris. A History of the Two of Eden.
 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and the Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-6. Anonymous. "The Ardsley Square Fire!" [Ardsley, West-chester Co.] Westchester Historian, Winter 1972. (reprinted from Irvington Gazette, Dec. 11, 1914).
- C-7.

 "Bicentenary Annals." [Admiral Francois de Grasse -- namesake of St. Lawrence Co. town.]

 Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Co. Historical Association, April 1972.
- C-8. . "Cooperation Protects Site of Fort Orange." [Albany.] History News, July 1971.
- C-9. "The Gas Plant." [Ogdensburg, 1854-1939.]
 Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Co. Historical Association,
 Jan. 1972.
- C-10. "'The Lake of the Enthouhoncouns': or, with Champlain at Henderson Harbor." [Henderson Harbor, N.Y.]

 Jefferson County Historical Society Bullatin, Oct. 1971.
- C-11. "The Pavilion Hotel and Old Howe's Cave." [Cobleskill.] Schoharie County Historical Review, Fall-Winter 1971.
- C-12. "Old Stone Fort Museum -- 200th Anniversary 1772-1972." [Schoharie, M.Y.] Schoharie County Historical Review, Spring-Summer 1972.
- C-13. "Professor CTum and His Weather Machine." [Made in Elmira in 1842.] Chemung Historical Journal, March 1972.
- C-14. "The Second Bethpage Purchase." [Thomas Powell House, Bethpage, N.Y.] Huntington Historical Society, Dec. 1971.
- C-15. "Typewriter Capital: Cortland, N.Y."

 [Smith-Corona Marchant, Inc.] Adirondac Life, Winter 1972. (reprinted from Business in New York State).
- C-16. . "The Whispering Bell." [St. Paul's church, Eastchester.] Westchester Historian, Autumn 1971.



- C-17. "1778 White Plains Orderly Book." [Excerpts.]
 Westchester Historian, Spring 1971.
- C-18. Baker, Melvin G. "The Founding of the National Gypsum Company." [Clarence Center, N.Y., 1925.] Niagara Frontier, Winter 1970.
- C-19. Baker, Oneta M. A History of the Town of Clarence. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and rie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. mphlet, 1971).
- C-20. Bayles, Thomas R. "Prosser's Cathedral Pines."
 [Suffolk Co. park, Middle Island, L.I.] Long Island
 Forum, August 1971.
- C-21. Becker, Howard. Early Views of the Vischer Ferry Area -- Becker. [One copy.] R.D. 2, Vischer Ferry Rd., Rexford, N.Y. 12148. (book, 1971).
- C-22. Bishop, Lewis H. History of the Warsaw Fire Department and Fires for 100 Years. [1871-1971.] 15 Wyoming St., Warsaw, N.Y. 14569. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-23.

 . Warsaw's Artificial and Natural Gas and Electric Facilities. 15 Wyoming St., Warsaw, N.Y. 14:69. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-24. Boyd, Mary E. Urdating 1872 Map Information. [Caledonia, N. .] 3204 Crescent Parkway, Caledonia, N.Y. 14423. (pamphlet in progress).
- C-25. Bradley, Charles B. A History of the Town of Boston. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-26. Briggs, Mrs. Courtland. A Mistory of the Town of Elma. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-27. Brown, Jack. "When the Steamer Massena Burned." [Ogdensburg, August 19, 1903.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- C-28. Brown, Remert E. A Hastory of the Town of Holland. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-29. Bruni, Samuel N. Lewistown Sesquicentennial. [History of village.] Kellick (book, 1971).
- C-30. Buck, Redd. "Here Comes Zero!" [Dog racing at Bakers Mills, N.Y.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.



- C 1. Byrne, Ray. "Looking Back In Country History." [Luther-anville.] Schoharie Country Historical Review, Spring-Summer 1972. (reprinted from Albany Knickerbocker News-Schenectady Union Star).
- C-32. Byrne, Thomas E. Her Giff: A Hospital. [Marianna Arnot Ogden, Elmira, N.Y.] Chemung Historical Journal, Sept. 1971.
- C-33. Byrns, Nancy Mae. "West Fowler School House." The Yorker, May-June 1971.
- C-34. Cardinal, James. "From Court Minute Book 1787."

 [Extract from Minute Book of the Court of Oyer and Terminer of Westchester Co. 1785-1850 of minutes of Court for June 12, 1787, session at Eastchester.] Westchester Historian, Spring 1972.
- C-35. Chard, Leslie F. "Out the Wilderness: Dunkirk's First Century." [1805-THE] City of Dunkirk, Dunkirk, N.Y. 14048. (book, 1972]
- C-36. Chase, Louise F. and Susem C. Lyman. The Story of Norwood, N.Y.: A Century Frogress, 1872-1972. Norwood, Historical Association, Norwood, N.Y. 13668. (pamphle, 1972).
- C-37. Coles, Robert R. "Indian and Other Place-Names."
 [Long Island.] Long Island Forum, May 1971.
- C-38. "The Family Burying Ground." [Port Washington.] Long Island Forum, Sept. 1971.
- C-39. Connelly, Catherine. "Junge Eiram Gray's Cobblestone House." [Elmira.] Chemung Eistorical Journal, Sept. 1971.
- C-40. Cook, Donald D. A History of the Town of Evans. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffelo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 1616. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-41. Cunliffe, Richard S. "Factoric Markers Returned to Pelham Dale." [Pelham Mano: N.Y.] Westchester Historian, Summer 1971.
- C-42. Davison, Eunice. A History of the Town of Aurora. [Sesquicentennial.[Buffilo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 1-275. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-43. Dean, Elmer, Jr. "On Stage, 1908-23: The Mozart Theatre." Chemung Historical Journal, June 1971.



- C-44. Denny, Arthamese. "Christian Hollow -- What's in a Name." [Southport.] Chemung Historical Journal, Sept. 1971.
- C-45. Dittmar, Willard B. A History of the Town of Tonawanda (City). [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-46. Dixson, John B. My Fathers Old Fashioned Drug Store. Almond Historical Society, R.D., Almond, N.Y. 14804. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-47. Dole, Gary. "A Study of the North Collins Shale Brick Company." [North Collins.] The Yorker, Dec. 1971.
- C-48. Douglas, Garry F. Waterford; A Second Look. [Pictorial history.] 123 Fonda Rd., Waterford, N.Y. 12188. (booklet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-49. Dunkak, Rev. Br. Harry M. "Democracy in Colonial New Rochelle." Westchester Historian, Summer 1971.
- C-50. Dunn, Esther A. Webster.... Through the Years. Christopher Press. (book, 1971).
- C-51. Dunn, Jean W. "Glass: Lancaster and Lockport, N.Y."
 Adventures in Western New York History, April 1971.
- C-52. Fahnestock, Connie L. "Gebrokeland." [History of Huntington for school courses in local history.]
 7 Sweet Hollow Rd., Huntington, N.Y. 11743. (pamphise in progress, ECD 1973).
- C-53. "Main St. Was a Bobsled Course."
 [Huntington Winter Carnivals; 1907-20.] Long Island Forum, Feb. 1972.
- C-54. Falco, Nicholas. "Jamaica's World War I Canteen." Long Island Forum, August 1971.
- C-55. Finn, J. Leo. Old Shipping Days in Oswego. [Water transportation.] J. Leo Finn, Oswego, N.Y. 13126. (book, 1971).
- C-56. Folsom, Mildred E. Echoes of the Past: Annals of the Town of Greene, Chenango County, N.Y., 1867-1967. 16 South Chenango St., Greene, N.Y. 13778. (book, 1977.)
- C-57. Fredriksen, Beatrice. Residents of Hyde Park -- 19(0 to Now. [Taped recordings of long time Hyde Park residents.] 43 Circle Dr., Hyde Park, N.Y. 12538. (tapes in progress).



- C-58. French, Robert M. The Formation of a Pioneer Village Once Nunda Hollow, Now Pike, N.Y. Pike Library, Pike, N.Y. 14130. (MS., 1971).
- C-59. Frost, Harlan M. "Impact of the Depression on the Work of the Council of Churches." [Buffalo.] Niagara Frontier, Winter 1970.
- C-60. Geiger, Lillian. A History of the Town of Concord. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-61. Glover, Wilbur H. A History of the Town of Amherst. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-62. Hardeman, Edward L. "Downtown Elmira Vintage of 1912." Chemung Historical Journal, March 197.
- C-63. Hart, Isabella H. History of Pttsford. Pittsford Town Hall, Pittsford, N.Z. 14534. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-64. Reminiscences of Pittsford 1900-1913."
 Pittsford Town Hall, Pittsford, N.Y. 14534. (pamphlet, ECD 1973).
- C-65. Hasbrouck, L.M. "Ogdensiming of 1809—I810." [Part I.]
 Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Cc. Historical Association,
 Jan. 1972.
- C-66. Heppell, Roger C. "Cold Summer of 1816: Fact or Fancy? The Example of Cortland." New York Folklore Quarterly, Sept. 1971.
- C-67. Historic Palmyra Inc. Palmyra, Canal Town, New York. Historic Palmyra Inc., Palmyra, N.Y. 14522. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-68. Hubbard, Parnell F. "Champion School Days." [Champion, N.Y.] Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, Jan. 1972.
- C-69. Hunt, Terence S. Bethpage: The Years of Development 1840-1910. [Long Island.] 79 Sycamore Ave., Bethpage, N.Y. 11714. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-70. Ives, Dorothea S. "Salisbury History." R.D. 1 Dolgeville, N.Y. 13329. (book in progress).
- C-71. Jackson, Harry F. and Thomas F. O'Donnell. Back Home in Oneida: Hermon Clarke and His Letters. [Civil War soldier's letters to his family in Oneida.] Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).



- C-72. Jones, Oliver P. "Health Care Facilities at Buffalo in 1846." Niagara Frontier, Spring 1971.
- C-73. Kappel, Alfred. "Green County: Some Notables of the Town of Cairo." [Part V.] Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- C-74. Kieffer, J. Arthur. "Lake Street's First County Courthouse." [Elmira.] Chemung Historical Journal, Dec. 1971.
- C-75. Klingel, Marion E. A History of the Town of Grand Island. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-76. La Chapelle, Peg. "Saratoga Chips." [Birth of the potato chip, Saratoga, 1850's.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- C-77. Lackmann, David. "The Tree of Peace." [Indian Council Tree at Knickerbacker Mansion in Schaghticoke.] The Yorker, April 1972.
- C-78. Landmarks Preservation Committee. A Guide to Historic Landmarks in the Town of Southeast, Putnam County.

 [Brewster.] Southeast Museum, Main St., Brewster, N.Y. 10509. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-79.

 . The Old Field House. [Brewster, N.Y..]

 Southeast Museum, Main St., Brewster, N.Y. 10509.

 (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-80.

 . The Old Town Hall. [Brewster, N.Y., now the Southeast Historic Museum.] Southeast Museum, Main St., Brewster, N.Y. 10509. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-81.

 . Putnam County's Oldest Tree: The Majestic White Oak. [Brewster, N.Y.] Southeast Museum, Main St., Brewster, N.Y. 10509. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-82.

 . The Walter Brewster House. [Brewster.]

 Southeast Museum, Main St., Brewster, N.Y. 10509.

 (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-83. Lankes, Frank J. Gone are the Days A Miscellany of Local Events. [West Seneca.] West Seneca Historical Society, West Seneca, N.Y. 14224. (pamphlet, ECD 1972).
- C-84. Lehman, Pamela A. The Schenectary Massacre. Schenectary County Historical Society, 32 Washington Ave., Schenectary, N.Y. 12305. (booklet, 1972).



- C-85. Le Viness, J. Leonard. "The Hartsdale Bugle." [Published only one issue, March 1878.] Westchester Historian, Spring 1972.
 - . "Hartsdale in the Revolution." West-chester Historian, Summer 1971.
- C-87. . "The Odells of Hartsdale." Westchester Historian, Winter 1972.
- C-88. Luce, Gladys M. Lest We Forget. [Early Town of Leon, Cattaraugus Co.] Town of Leon, R.D. 1, Cattaraugus, N. Y. 1471 (booklet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-89. Lyman, Susan C. "The Mills and Railroads of Norwood." 38 Prospect St., Norwood, N. Y. 13668. (newspaper series in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-90. MacKemzie, Mary. "Home of the Hickories." [Lake Placid Club.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- C-91. Mahomy, Velma W. "Village Square." [Since 1814, in Leicenter.] Livingston County Leader, April 17, 1972.
- C-92. Martin, Carolyn A. Trumansburg, New York Incorporation Centennial Booklet. Duane Waid. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-93. Masten, Arthur H. The Story of Adirondac. [Account of the discovery and development (1826-57) of the MacIntyre Iron Company and the village it created.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1923 ed.).
- C-94. Matle, Ruth M. Church Histories -- Victories of Oak Field.
 52 Main St., Oak Field, N. Y. 14125. (pamphlet in progress).
- C-95. Early Settlers -- Village of Oak Field.

 52 Main St., Oak Field, N. Y. 14125. (pamphlet in progress).
- C-96. McDonnell, James R. The Rise of the CIO in Buffalo, New York 1936-1942. State Univ. College, 1300 Elmwood Ave., Buffalo, N. Y. 14222. (Ph.D. thesis, 1971).
- C-97. McGinnis, Ella K. Pictorial Wheatland. [Monroe Co., 2 vols.] Havens Press. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-98. McKelvew, Blake. "Flour Milling at Rochester." Rochester History, July 1971.
- C-99. "Historic Predecessors of the Central Business District." [Rochester, N. Y.] Rochester History, April 1972.



- C-100.

 . "A History of Penal and Correctional Institutions in the Rochester Area." Rochester History, Jan. 1972.
- C-101. Rochester and Monroe County: An Historic Partnership." Rochester History, April 1971.
- C-102. McMillen, Loring. The Stephen's House and Store. [Richmondtown.] Staten Island Historian, Jan.-March 1972.
- C-103. Mikula, Edward J. A History of the Town of Lancaster. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-104. Milener, Eugene D. The Development of Oneonta, N.Y., in the 19th Century. 39 Cedar St., Oneonta, N.Y. 13820. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-105. Minerly, Edith S. Athens History. [Including these titles: Athens Ferries, Athens in 1900's, History of Athens, 2nd Reformed Church, Early Industry of Athens, Athens Hotels, Old & New, Potic: Location & Meaning.] Rt. 385, Athens, N.Y. 12015. (book in progress).
- C-106. Morgan, Kenneth B. David and Esther Hays. [David: 1732-1812, Westchester Co.] Westchester Historian, Spring 1972.
- C-107. Moskowitz, Virginia. "The Liberty Bell Sister." [St. Paul's church, Eastchester.] Westchester Historian, Winter 1972.
- C-108. Myers, Frances and Eva Taylor. "Elmira's Apostles of Woman's Lib." [Including Crystal Ford Eastman, 1873-1928.] Chemung Historical Journal, Dec. 1971.
- C-109. Nagel, Mrs. Vern B. History of the Town of Harmony. [Chautauqua Co.] Box 32, Panama, N.Y. 14767. (book in progress).
- C-110. Neumann, Charles A. A History of the Town of Marilla. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-111. New York State Department of Commerce. "Rome." [Industrial history.] York State Tradition, Fall 1971. (reprinted from Business in New York State).
- C-112. Paolucci, Anthony M. "Ardsley Blacksmith." [Louis DeSimone.] Westchester Historian, Spring 1971.
- C-113. Parrell, Sr. Mary A. "In Dobbs Ferry." [History of West-chester Co. village.] Mercy Col., 555 Broadway, Dobbs Ferry, N.Y. 10522. (article in progress, ECD 1973).



- C-114. Patterson, Mrs. George E. Cowing & Co., Pumps & Fire Engines. [1840-75, producers of fire-fighting equipment, Seneca Falls.] Seneca Falls Historical Society, 55 Cayuga St., Seneca Falls, N. Y. 13148. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-115.

 . The Seneca Falls of David B. Lum, 18061875. [Articles read by him before the Seneca Falls
 Historical Society.] Seneca Falls Historical Society,
 55 Cayuga St., Seneca Falls, N. Y. 13148. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-116.

 . Silsby & Company. [Silsby Fire Engine, Cayuga St.] Seneca Falls Historical Society, 55 Cayuga St., Seneca Falls, N. Y. 13148. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-117. Pearsall, Louis P. "Stranding of the Northern Pacific." [Fire Island, N. Y., Jan. 1, 1919.] Long Island Forum, June 1971.
- C-118. Peterson, Alice V. History of Town of French Creek. R.D. 2, Clymer, N. Y. 14734. (pamphlet in progress; ECD 1973).
- C-119. Phelan, Helene. The Cooking Fireplace in the Hagadorn House. Almond Historical Society, R.D., Almond N. Y. 14804. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-120. Printy, John. A History of the Town of Orchard Park. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N. Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-121. Rahmer, Frederick A. Jesse Williams, Cheesemaker. [Founding of first commercial cheese factory in world at Rome, N. Y.] P.O. Box 123, Rome, N. Y. 13440. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-122. Ransom, Charles E. Gaslight and Gingerbread -- A Photographic Recollection of Old Sea Cliff. Box 55, Sea Cliff, N. Y. 11579. (book, 1971).
- C-123. Rattray, Jeannette E. "Horses of the Hamtpons." Long Island Forum, Nov. 1971.
- C-124. Reinstein, Julia Boyer. A History of the Town of Cheektowaga. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N. Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-125. Rivette, Barbara S. "When the Railroad Was King."
 [Railroad yards at East Syracuse and Minoa.] Eagle-Bulletin, DeWitt News-Times, Aug. 26, 1971.
- C-126. ______. The Village of Manlius -- A Brief History. Route 1, Chittenango, N. Y. 13037. (pamphlet, 1970).



- C-127. Rose, Keven H. "The Prince and the Gypsy Dancer." [Exile-Prince Louis Sulkowski of Harrisville, Lewis Co., 1848-58, and Lola Montez.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- C-128. Rossback, Mable Limburg. "Summering." [Memoirs of Saranac Lake 1910-20.] Adirondack Life, Summer 1971.
- C-129. Rowley, William E. Immigration History of Albany. English Dept., State Univ. of N.Y. at Albany, Albany, N.Y. 12203. (book in progress).
- C-130. . "The Irish Aristocracy of Albany, 1798-1878." New York History, July 1971.
- C-131. Ruhfel, Albert. "Fire Island Inlet." Long Island Forum, May 1971.
- C-132. Saunders, William. "Cholera a Health Threat in 1832: Good Water for Watertown Was an Early Problem, Too." Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, April 1972.
- C-133. Schlede, Carolyn. The Musical History of Lyons. Hoffman Foundation, Wayne County Museum, 21 Butternut St., Lyons, N.Y. 14489. (essay, 1972).
- C-134. Scully, Virginia D. (ed.) History of the Town of Ontario 1807-1971. Empire State Weeklies.
- C-135. Sharpe, Ellen G. "Nine Decades of Memories of Rensselaer Falls." [St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- C-136. Sipprell, Marjory G. A History of the Town of Hamburg. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-137. Smith, Mabel P. "The Stone Jug, Catskill: 1763-1896."
 [Mansion built by John Dies.] Catskill Daily Mail, March 27, 29, 31, 1972.
- C-138. Smith, Patricia A. "Burrs Mills, Pioneer Settlement: Once a Lively Rival to the City of Watertown." [Burrville, N.Y.] Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, Oct. 1971.
- C-139. Smithers, Courtland F. History of Heuvelton and Vicinity. [1806-1956; town of Oswegatchie, St. Lawrence Co.; edited and brought up to date by Persis Yates Boyesen. Ryan Press. (book, 1971).
- C-140. Spencer, Erskine. "History of the City of Albany." [Install-ment II.] Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- C-141. Spencer, Lorna J. A History of the Town of Collins. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).



- C-142. Stein, Geoffrey. "Christian Weeber and his Weebermobile." [Albany inventor of early motorcar, c. 1898.] Naho, Spring 1972.
- C-143. Stowart, John D. A History of the Town of Tonawanda. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-144. Strong, Kate W. "Throg's Neck Lighthouse." Long Island Forum, June 1971.
- C-145. Sullivan, Nell B. Chazy Town History. Chazy, N.Y. 12921. (book in progress).
- C-146. Tanney, Donna S. "Brookfield-Gateway to Madison Co."
 Lone Rock Homestead, Brookfield, N.Y. 13314. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-147. Terwilliger, Grace P. History of Sidney, N.Y.: Organizations. Sidney Historical Association, Sidney, N.Y. 13838. (book and pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- C-148. Terwilliger, Katherine T. History of the Town of Wawarsing, Ulster Co., N.Y. 4 Liberty St., P.O. Box 389, Ellenville, N.Y. 12428. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- C-149. Town of Bedford. Bedford Historical Records, Vol. IV: Land Records 1689-1800. [Westchester Co; includes deeds and related records, maps and illustrations relating to Indian purchases, estate records of John Jay and Jacobus Van Cortlandt, index.] Edwards Brothers. (book, 1971).
- C-150. Urban, Steve. Number One. [History of Williamson, N.Y., Volunteer Fire Company #1.] Hoffman Foundation. (essay, 1972).
- C-151. Valentine, Andrus T. and Harriet G. "Wood's Tide Mill Grist Books." [Continuation.] Long Island Forum, May & June 1971.
- C-152. W.K. Vanderbilt Historical Society of Dowling College. Old Oakdale History. [Suffolk Co.] Box 433, Oakdale. L.I., N.Y. 11769. (book in progress).
- C-153. Van Duyne, Alice M. Manchester Through the Years. [Ontario Co.] Houghton College, Houghton, N.Y. 14744. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-154. Verity, Capt. Wilbur A. "Old Time Baymen." [Fishermen in Freeport, Merrick, and Baldwin, L. I.] Long Island Forum July 1971.
- C-155. Viscome, Laura. "Lake Placid: Site of 1972 Annual [Yorker] Meeting." [History of village.] The Yorker, February 1972.





- C-156. Watkins, Joseph. "The City of Utica, Oneida County." [Part XIV.] Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- C-157. Weir, Leona R. History of Gospel Hill, Guilford, New York and Its People. Gospel Hill, Guilford, N.Y. 13780. (book in progress).
- C-158. Weller, Ethelyn. A History of the Town of Brant. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-159.

 . A History of the Town of Colden. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-160.

 _______. A History of the Town of Lackawanna. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-161.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-162.

 A History of the Town of North Collins.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society,
 Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-163.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-164.

 _______. A History of the Town of Wales. [Ses-quicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-165.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-166. Wells, Phyllis. "Covered Bridges of Yesteryear: A List of Sites Where Covered Bridges Once Stood in New York State." York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- C-167. White, John B. The Centenary Community. [Settlement of pioneers around Centenary Church and school in the Town of Sodus, Wayne Co., N.Y.] Hoffman Foundation. (essay, 1972).
- C-168. Winters, Nelson R. "Gouverneur 50 Years Ago." [St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- C-169. Wood, Mabel C. "Through the Years with Show Biz." [Theatrical Entertainment in 19th C. Elmira.] Chemung Historical Journal, Dec. 1971.



- C-170. Yancey, Susan. A History of the Coal Trestle at Sodus Point. Hoffman Foundation.
- SEE ALSO: A-19; A-22; A-28; A-32; B-2; B-28; B-34; B-37; B-39; B-43; B-48; B-57; B-69; G-4; G-8; J-6; J-11; J-15; J-24; K-3; K-5; K-6; K-7; M-46; M-47.

COUNTIES

- D-1. Anonymous. "The Ferries A Story in Pictures of What Were Once Staten Island's Only Regular Routes to the Outside World." Staten Island Historian, July-Sept. 1971.
- D-2. "Rides and Rambles on Staten Island." Staten Island Historian, Oct.-Dec. 1971. (reprinted from The Pointer, June 1894).
- D-3. "1793: To the King -- One Bill for 1017 Cords of Wood. [Staten Islander's supply of wood to British.] Staten Island Historian, Jan.-March 1972.
- D-4. Atwater, Edward C. Demographic Study of Monroe County Physicians in the First Half of the 19th Century. 195 Whitewood La., Rochester, N.Y. 14618. (in progress).
- D-5. Barnes, Katherine B. The Genesee Country. [1790-1972.] (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-6. Barons, Virginia M. (ed.) History of Music in Genesee County. 131 West Main St., Batavia, N.Y. 14020. (pam-phlet, 1972).
- D-7. Cardinal, James. "The County Seat is Moved." [1759, from Town of Westchester, Bronx, to White Plains.] Westchester Historian, Autumn 1971.
- D-8. Committee on Roads and Bridges of Westchester Co. "West-chester Bridges 1838-1859." [Financial report.] West-chester Historian, Summer 1971.
- D-9. Cooper, Susan F. Rural Hours. [Fenimore Cooper's daughter's journal of mid-19th century life in Cooperstown area.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1887 ed.).
- D-10. Cortland County Historical Society. Its of Cortland County, N.Y., 1800-1810. Cortland County storical Society, 25 Homer Ave., Cortland, N.Y. 13045. (pamphlet, 1972).
- D-11. Darcy Communications, Inc., advised by Monroe Co. history office. Preface to Tomorrow: Monroe County History Briefly Told and Illustrated. Monroe County, Rochester, N.Y. 14614.



- D-12. Dunn, Walter S. (ed.) Erie County, 1870-1970. 25 Nottingham Ct., Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-13. Everest, Allan S. Buildings Worth Preserving in Clinton and Essex Counties. Tundra Press. (book, 1972).
- D-14. Faibisoff, Sylvia G. and Susan Feldman. "A Bibliography of Newspapers in Fourteen New York State Counties." [Second, third and fourth installments: Allegany, Broome, and Cayuga counties.] New York History, Oct. 1971, Jan. & April 1972.
- D-15. Fisher, J. Sheldon. Pictorial History of Ontario County. [Emphasis on Founding.] Valentown Museum, Fishers, N.Y. 14453. (pamphlet, 1972).
- D-16. Gould, Ernest C. "The Pioneers and Education: One Room Schools and Academies." Jefferson Co. Historical Society Bulletin, Jan. 1972.
- D-17. Hills, William P. "That First Meeting, May 10, 1886: Organization of the Jefferson County Historical Society." Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, July 1971.
- D-18. Houghton, William M. Selected Topics of Rural Historical Interest and Explanatory Drawings. [Madison Co. architecture, artifacts, economy, etc.] Madison Co. Historical Society, 435 Main St., Oneida, N.Y. 13421. (book, 1971).
- D-19. Jackson, Kenneth T. The Process of Suburbanization in West-chester County. 706 Hamilton Hall, Columbia Univ., New York, N.Y. 10027. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- D-20. Kammen, Carol K. Sources for the Study of Local History: [Tompkins County, N.Y. 1326 East State St., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-21. Keith, Herbert F. "Old Guides of the Oswegathhie River." [St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Co. Historical Association, April 1972.
- D-22. Knap, Thomas S. "Manzanita Island." [St. Lawrence River.] The Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, July 1971.
- D-23. Lindsley, Grant N. Fifty Years--1919 to 1969--of the American Legion in Oswego County. New Haven, N.Y. 13121. (book, 1972).
- D-24. McMillen, Harlow. Documentary History aten Island during the American Revolution. Staten Island Historical Society, Staten Island, N.Y. 10306. (book in progress, ECD 1973).



- D-25. Nivus, Albert. "Schuyler Land Tracts and Their Owned:
- The Major Schuyler County Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- D-26. Race, Susan K. "Highway %" 1908-9." The Quarterly of Association, July 1971.
- Fory: Canton to Ogdensburg, . Lawrence County Historical
- D-27.Ragan, Steve. "Grassroots Estate: The Press in St. Lawrence County." Quarter Historical Association, Oct.
 - e St. Lawrence County
- D-28. Roberts, John M. Social Gra Committee For New Nations, 60637. (Ph.D. thesis in pr
- Oneida Co., 1790-1840. . Univ. Ave., Chicago, Ill. 0.5°
- Shaeffer, James B. "A Medi D-29. Medicine Had & Modest Start. Society Bulletin, April 1972.
- istory: Jefferson County Efferson County Historical
- Shutt, Donald. "Howe's Cave D - 30. y Recognized As Nature's Wonder." Schoharie County Harmical Review, Spring-Summer 1972.
- Smith, Mabel P. The Revolution way War in Greene County. D-31. 251 Main St., Catskill, N.Y. 414. (in progress).
- D-32.Smith, Philip H. Legends off two Shawangunk (Shon-Gum) and Its Environs. [Including his raical sketches, biographical notices, and thrilling bomder and idents and adventures relating to those portions of the granties of Orange, Ulster, and Sullivan lying in the Signature region.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 per nt of 1887 edition; foreword by Carl Carmer).
- D-33. Tompkins, Louise. Dutchess County Emerges From Its Wilderness Years. [Vanderburgh Family.] Dutchess Co. Infirmary, Millbrook, N.Y. 12545. (parchlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-34.Weinman, Paul L. and Thomas P. "The Satisfaction Site." [East bank of Coxsackie Creek, Greene Co.] New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- D-35. Willett, John. "The Settlement and Organization of Seneca County." [Installment I, including Seneca Co. bibliography.] Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- SEE ALSO: A-6; A-17; A-23; B-22; C-74; H-15.

IW YORK CITY

- E-1 Anonymous. "Frances Teavern: Where the Ceneral Said F re-Well.." [Site of Washington's farewell to his officers in 1783.] American History Illustrated, Jan. 1972.
- Barlow, Elizabeth To prests and Wetlands of New York Tity. Little, Brown & Co. R., 1971).
- rk: A Once and Future Arcadia.

 Ecological poter f N.Y.C.] New York, Nov. 29, 19
- E-4. Rellush, Jewel Wid, Stephen M. (eds.) Race and Politics in New Yor Stephen E-2 Policy Making. Preoger. (book, 1971).
- E-5. Bloom, Steven. The Interactions between Blacks and Jews in New York City, 1900-1930. 309 West 72 St., Apt. # 1C, c/o Goethelf, New York, N.I. 10023. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1974).
- E-6. Connolly, Harold 1. E acks in Brooklyn From 1900 to 1960. New York University Washington Sq., New York, N.Y. 10003. (Ph.D. thesis, 1972)
- E-7. EitzSimons, Neal (ed.) The Reminiscences of John B. Jervis, Engineer of the Marton. Foreword by Robert Vogel. [Croton Aqueduc Ser Ork City, 1842.] Syracuse University Press. (book, 1862.
- E-8. Gilman, Lois J. The Development of a Neighborhood, Bedford, Brooklyn, 1850-188: A Case Study. 541 W. 113 St., 5A, New York, N:Y. 10-25. (M.A. thesis, 1972).
- Glazer, Nathan. "'Regulating' the Poor--or Ruining Them."
 [Welfare Situation IN N.Y.C.] New York, Oct. 11, 1971.
- Greenberg, M., Carey, G., Zobler, L. and Hordon, R. "A Geographical Systems Malysis of the Water Supply Networks of the New York Metroscolitan Region." The Geographical Review, July 1971.
- E-11. Heale, M.J. "The New York Society for the Prevention of Pauperism 1817-1823." Mew-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 2971.
- E-12. Hellman, Peter. "The stery House at 61st and Fifth." [Dodge Mansion.] New Eark, Oct. 11, 1971.
- E-13. Horsmanden, Daniel. The New York Conspiracy. Ed. by Thomas J. Davis: Horsmanden W. s a judge of Sp. valled conspiracy of slaves in N. . C., 1.41.] Reacon Press. (1971 reprint of 1744 edition



- E-14. Huggins, Nathan I. Harlow orders. [Black liters and other arts, N.Y.C., mainly in the 1920's.] Oxford University Press. (book, 1972).
- E-15. Kessner, Thomas. New Your City's Immigrants: Economic and Geographic Mobility of Interior and Jews. 312 E. 54th St., New York, N.Y. 10022. This is in progress, ECD 1974).
- E-16. McMillen, Harlow. "Agrictive of Richmond County." [Dr. Samuel Ackerly's report of 1342.] Staten Island Historian, Jan.-March 1971.
- E-17. Perlman, Daniel. "Organizat ons of the Free Negro in York City, 1800-1860." The urnal of Negro History, 1971.
- E-18. Pessen, Edward. "A Social and Monomic Portunit of Jacksonian Brooklyn: Inequality, and Immobility, and Class Distinction in the Natiom's Second City." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, West 1971.
- E-19. Pileggi, Nicholas. "Risaggiment The Red, White and Greening of New York." [Formation of a C.C. branch of the Italian-American Civil Rights League.] New York, June 7, 1971.
- E-20. Pinkney, Alphonso and Woods Powerty and Politics in Harlem. College and University Press. (book, 1971).
- E-21. Posner, Russell M. "An Englisman's Tour of New York in 1830." [Sir Henry Singer Keating, 1804-8E.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1971.
- E-22. Rosenwaike, Ira. Population History of New York City. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1972).
- E-23. Simon, Arthur. Stuyvesant Town, USA: Pattern For Two Americas. New York University Press. (book, 1971).
- E-24. Simon, Donald E. The Public Fark Movement in Brooklyn, 1824-1873. 1911 Dorchester Rd., Brooklyn, N.Y. 11215. (Ph.D. thesis, 1972).
- E-25. Smith. Robert P. In the Purs. t of Happiness: Brooklyn at Play, 1890-1898. 142 Hicks St., Apt. 4D, Brooklyn, N.Y. 11201. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1972).
- E-26. Spatt, Beverly M. A Proposal to Change the Foructure of City Planning: Case Study of New York City. Praeger Publishers. (book, 1971).
- E-27. Weingarten, Gene. "East Bronx Story -- Return of the Street Gangs." New York, March 27, 1977.



- E-28. Wilkenfeld, Bruce M. "The New York City Common Council, 1698-1800." New York History, July 1971.
- SEE ALSO: A-7; A-11; A-12; B-5; B-23; B-24; B-46; B-66; H-13; M-27.

ECONOMIC LIFE

- Box 43, Canton, N.Y. 13617. (article in progress, ECD 19-2)
- F-2. Bradley, L. J. and Davisson, William. "New York Maritime Trade: Ship Voyage Patterns, 1715-1765." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, Oct. 1971.
- F-3. Darlington, James W. The Geography of the New York, Onand Western Railway. 817 Sumner Ave., Syracuse, N.Y. (M.A. thesis in progress, ECD 1972).
- T-4. Durant, Kenneth (ed.) Guide-Boat Days and Ways. [Adironal dacks] Adironal Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book 1971, reprint of 1963 edition).
- F-5. Fowler, William M. "A Yankee Peddler, Nonimportation, are the New York Merchants." [N.Y.C., 1772.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1972.
- F-6. Fried, Frederick. "Early Carousel Makers of New York State." Naho, Spring 1972.
- F-7. Helmer, William F. History of the Ulster & Delaware Rail-road. SUNY Agricultural & Technical College, Morrisville, N.Y. 13408. (book in progress, 1972).
- F-8.

 Way. SUNY Agricultural & Technical College, Morrisville, N.Y. 13408. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- F-9. Ivory, Paul W. "Packet Boat Runners on the Erie Canal." [Pitchmen for passenger boat companies, 1820-50.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- F-10. Okada, Yasuo. "Squires' Diary: New York Agriculture in Transition, 1840-1860." New York History, Oct. 1971.
- SEE ALSO: B-30; B-31; B-36; C-18; C-23; C-47; C-55; C-76; C-93; C-96; C-99; C-111; C-112; C-114; C-121; C-125; C-151; C-154; D-1; E-8; E-11; E-15; E-16; E-18; M-9.

EDUCATION

G-1. Holl, Jack M. Juvenile Reform in the Progressive Era: William R. George and the Junior Republic Movement. [Freeville, N.Y.] Cornell Univ. Press. (book, 1971).



- G-2. Hundley, Mildred. "Pierrepont Schools." St. Lawrence County.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- G-3. Mabee, Carleton. History of the Separate Black Schools of New York State. 1704-1942. Dept. of History, State Univ. College, New Paltz, N.Y. 12561. (book in progress).
- G-4. Mason, John W. "North Country Beacon" [SUNY at Platts-burgh.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- G-5. Parkman, Aubrey. "President Hill and the Sectarian Challenge at the University of Rochester." Rochester History, Oct. 1971.
- G-6. Pickett, Robert S. House of Refuge: Origins of Juvenile Reform in New York State, 1815-1857. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- G-7. Somers, Wayne. Early Scientific Books in Schaffer Library Union College. [Pre-1800 works, Union College Studies No. 1, intro. by Brooke Hindle.] Union College. (book, 1972).
- 5-8. Taylor, Eva. "Academy of Science, Elmira, N.Y." Chemung Historical Journal, June 1971.
- G-9. Weisz, Howard. "Irish-American Attitudes and the Americanization of the English-Language Parochial School." [N.Y.S.] New York History, April 1972.

SEE ALSO: B-25; D-16.

GOVERNMENT AND POLITICS

- H-1. Anderson, Samuel K. "Public Lotteries in Colonial New York." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1972.
- H-2. Barkan, Elliott R. "The Emergence of a Whig Persuasion: Conservatism, Democratism, and the New York State Whigs."
 New York History, Oct. 1971.
- H-3. Bonomi, Patricia W. A Factious People: Politics and Society in Colonial New York. Columbia University Press. (book, 1971).
- H-4. Boorgem, Hendrik. Conscience and Politics: The Republican Party in New York, 1854-1861. Division of Humanities, SUNY College at Purchase, N.Y. 10577. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1973).
- H-5. D'Innocenzo, Michael and John J. Turner, Jr. "The President and the Press: Lincoln, James Gordon Bennett, and the Election of 1864." History Dept., Hofstra Univ., Hempstead, N.Y. 11550. (completed article).



- H-6. Hamilton, Virginia V. "The True-blue Democrat." [James A. Farley, b. 1888.] hmurican Herimage, Aug. 1971.
- Hanyan, Craig R. "De Whit Climton and Wartisanship: The Development of Climan amism from 1811 1820." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1972
- H-8. Jaffs, Julian F. Crussãe Against Radiza lism: New York During the Red Scare, 1914-1924. Kennu at Press, Inc (bott in progress, ECL 1972).
- Kass Alvin. Politics in New York State, 1800-1830. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971
- H-10. LaGumina, Salwatore J. "Ethnic Groups in the New York Elections of 1572." New York History, Jun. 1972.
- H-11. Lovizio, Paul W. An Exeluation of the New York State Election Laws, Procedures, and Practices 1686-1795.

 Hofstra University, Hemmstead, N.Y. (M.A. thesis, 197].
- H-12. Martin, Roscoe C. Water for New York: A Study in State Administration of Water Resources. Symmetric University Press. (book, 1971).
- H-13. Moscow, Warren. "How Carmine DeSapic Made Ends Meet."
 New York, Oct. 11, 1971.
- H-14. Olson, Gary D. "The Soderstrom Incident: A Reflection unin Federal-State Relations Under the Articles of Comfederation."
 [1782.] New-York Historical Society Communication."
- H-15. Osborne, Chester G. "Yours Respectfully, B.T. Hutchinson."
 [1808-77; influential in N.Y.S. collinos as Suffolk County
 Town Clerk.] Long Island Forum, July 1971.
- H-17. Pratt, John W. A Tycle of New York Governors. [Administrations of Smith, E. Roosevelt, Lehman, and Dewey.] History Dept., State Univ. of N.Y. at Stony Brook, N.Y. 11790. (book in progress, ECD 1975).
- H-18. Stein, Judith. "The Impact of the New Deal on New York Politics: Keameth Simson and the Republican Party." New York Historical Society Quarterly, Jan. 1972.
- 19. Strong, Kate W. "Political Climates Never Change." [Escepts from three early 19th C. letters to Long Islander Thomas S. Strong.] Tong Island Forms, Nov. 1971.



- H-20. Thon, Sasan C. Woman Suffrage, New York. Law Library, Cornell Univ., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. Thook in progress).
- H-21. Wright, Langdom G. Local Government in Seventeenth Century New York. 11 Cook St., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850.
- SEE ALSO: B-7; B-9; B-12; B-23; B-24; B-29; B-35; B-46; B-56; B-65; B-67; C-34; D-24; E-4; E-20: D-28; M-49.

MILITARY

- J-1. Anonymous. 1778 Orderly Book." [Washington's Army in White Flains, 1778.] Westchester Historian, Summer 1971.
- J-2. Ball, Edward C. The American Strategy and French Role in the Fort Stanwix Treaty of 1784. Rome Historical Society, 112 Spring St., Rome, N.Y. 13440. (pemphlet, 1972).
- J-3. Brant, Joseph. "Letter Written by Joseph Brant to Lieut. Col. Bostom of the British Army, Dguwage 29th July 1779." [Battle of Minisink.] The Mennissenk, Aug. 1971.
- J-4. Cohen, Ronald D. "The New England Colonies and the Dutch Recapture of New York, 1673-1674." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, Jan. 1972.
- J-5. Cullen, Joseph P. "The Fight for New York." [From April issue devoted to the American Revolution.] American History Illustrated, April 1972.
- J-6. Donaldson, William R. "The Fort Salonce Story." [Long Island Fort captured from British in 1781.] Huntington Historical Society, March 1972.
- I-7. Frese, S.J., Joseph R. "A Trumbull Map of Fort Ticonderoga Rediscovered." Bulletin of the Eart Ticonderoga Museum, June 1971.
- J-8. Furneaux, Robert. The Battle of Saratoga. [Great Battles of the Modern World.] Stein and Day. (book, 1971).
- Hathorn, Col. John. "Letter Written by Col. John Hathorn, Commander of Militia at Battle of Minisink, to George Clinton, Gowernor of New York State, Five Days After Hattle Occurred on July 22, 1779." The Mennissenk, Aug. 1971.
- J-10. Hislop, Codmas. Tresson at West Point, 1780. Dorset, Vt. 05251. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- J-11. Hoffman, Renowa. "White Plains -- Two Centuries Later."
 [Battle site memorials.] American History Illustrated,
 July 1971.



- J-12. Keller, Allan. "The Battles for New York." [Fall of 1776: Harlem Heights, White Plains, Fort Washington.] American History Illustrated, July 1971.
- J-13. Klein, Milton M. William Livingston's "A Review of the Military Operations in North America." [Evaluation of 1757 publication, essay in the Colonial Legacy, vol. II, ed. by Lawrence H. Leder.] Harper & Row. (book, 1971).
- J-14. Marszalek, John F. "A Black Cadet at West Point." [1876-80; Johnson C. Whittaker.] American Heritage, Aug. 1971.
- J-15. Naylor, Colin T. "Two British Raids." [Van Cortlandtville, 1777.] Westchester Historian, Summer 1971.
- J-16. Nelson, Paul. "The Gates-Arnold Quarrel, 1777." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, July 1971.
- J-17. Rahmer, Frederick A. Fort Stanwix, A Brief History. [Rome, N.Y.] P.O. Box 123, Rome, N.Y. 13440. (pamphlet, 1972).
- J-18.

 Stanwix, The Fort That Never Surrendered.

 [Pre-1758 to 1827.] P.O. Box 123, Rome, N.Y. 13440.

 (book, ECD 1972).
- J-19. Rezneck, Samuel. Jewish Participation in the American Rewolution. 4501 Connecticut Ave. N.W., Washington, D.C. 2000E. (book in progress, ECD 1974).
- J-20. Rossie, Jonathan G. A Study of the Causes and Significance of Loyalism in the Mohawk Valley Region during the American Revolution. History Dept., St. Lawrence Univ., Canton, N.Y. 13617. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- J-21. Schwartzman, Daniel. "The Day the Nazis Landed on Long Island." The Yorker, May-June 1971.
- J-22. Speierl, Charles F. "Patchogue's Kansas Brigade." [Union Twelfth Militia; in two parts.] Long Island Forum, Nov. 1971.
- J-23. Stone, William L. The Campaign of Lieut. Gem. John Burgoyne and the Expedition of Lieut. Col. Barry St. Leger. DeCapo Press, 227 W. 17th St., New York, N.Y. 1001L. (book, 1970, reprint of 1877 edition).
- J-24. Workmaster, Wallace F. "The Forts of Oswego: A Study in the Art of Defense." [Colonial period through W.W. II.] Northeast Historical Archaeology, Spring 1972.
- SEE ALSO: B-13; B-15; B-47; B-49; B-51; B-52; B-55; B-59; C-17; C-71; D-31; E-1.



RELIGION AND CHURCHES

- K-1. Braman, Elizabeth E. "Lutheran Church, Landmark Destroyed by Fire." [Central Bridge, Schoharie County.] Schoharie County Historical Review, Fall-Winter 1971.
- K-2. Dalsimer, Marlyn H. Women and the Oneida Community, 18371880. 53 Cheever Place, Brooklyn, N.Y. 11203. (Ph.D.
 thesis in progress, ECD 1973).
- K-3. Lacy, Ruth B. A History of the First Baptist Church of Ithaca, 1971, 150th Amniversary. Cornell Univ. Archives, Olin Library, Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. (photocopy, 1971).
- K-4. Naylor, Colin T. "A Church Is Demolished." [Old South St. Methodist Church in Peekskill, formed 1795.] Westchester Historian, Suring 1972.
- K-5. Rutherford, Maxime B. "The First 150 Years: Hammond Presbyterian Church." [Hammond, St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- K-6. Schaeffer, Francis L. "Fort as Church Followed by Present: Reformed in 1844." [Schoharie Reformed Church.] Schoharie County Historical Review, Fall-Winter 1971.
- K-7. Verbridge, Susan C. The Pultneyville Reformed Church: Sketches. Hoffmam Foundation. (essay, 1972).

SEE ALSO: B-50; C-16; C-59; C-107.

INDIANS

- L-1. Anonymous. "Dancing, Foods and Cradle Boards." [Iroquois.] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-2. "Ga Gee Qua A (Lacrosse) and Snow Snake." [Iroquois games.] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-3. "Growing Up." [Onondaga children.] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-4. "The Mid-Winter Ceremonial of the Iroquois." The Mennisink, Feb. 1972.
- L-5. "The Onondaga -- Through the Eyes, Ears and Hands of the Young People." Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-6. "Traditional Clothing." [Iroquois.] Yorker, March-April 1971.



- L-7. "What is the Reservation Like Today?"
 [Onondaga Indian Reservation, south of Syracuse, N.Y.]
 Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-8. Collins, Helen. "The League of the Iroquois." Western Pennsylvania Historical Magazine, April 1972.
- L-9. Fenton, William N. (ed.) Parker on the Iroquois. [Three monographs by Arthur C. Parker originally published as bulletins by the New York State Museum: Iroquois Uses of Maize and Other Food Plants; The Code of Handsome Lake, the Seneca Prophet; the Constitution of the Fire Nations.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of editions published between 1910-16).
- L-10. Funk, Robert E. "The Davenport Creamery Site, Delaware County, New York." [Davenport Center, N.Y.] New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- L-11. Graymont, Barbara. The Iroquois in the American Revolution. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1972).
- L-12. Logan, Adelphena. "The Un-gwe-no-sau-nee." [Explanation of Iroquois' name for themselves, meaning "we builders of homes."] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-13. Noonan, Karen K. "Witches' Walk # 1: A Preliminary Site Report." [North bank of Allegheny River, south of Salamanica, N.Y.] New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- L-14. Ruttenber, E.M. History of the Indian Tribes of Hudson's River, Their Origin, Manners and Customs; Tribal and Sub-Tribal Organizations; Wars, Treaties, Etc. Kennikat Press. (book, 1971).
- L-15. Trelease, Allen W. Indian Affairs in Colonial New York: The Seventeenth Century. Kennikat Press. (1971 reprint of 1960 edition).
- L-16. Tuck, James A. Onondaga Iroquois Prehistory: A Study in Settlement Archaeology. Syracuse University Press, Syracuse, N.Y. 13210. (book, 1971).

SEE ALSO: C-37; C-77.

MISCELLANEOUS AND STATEWIDE

- M-1. Ahlstrom, Harold J. (ed.) Chautauqua Lake Steamboats. Fenton Historical Society, 68 South Main St., Jamestown, N.Y. 14701. (booklet, 1971).
- M-2. Ainsworth, Catherine H. "Some Italian Folktales of the Niagara Frontier." New York Folklore Quarterly, Dec. 1971.



- M-3. Anderson, Charles. "Blacks in the New York News Community." Afro-American Affairs, April 1971.
- M-4. Anonymous. "Adirondack Profile." [Mount Marcy.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-5. "Adirondack Profile: Giant of the Valley Mountain." Adirondack Life, Fall 1971.
- M-6.

 "Museums Great and Small." [Fire fighting museum, Hudson; Muson-Williams-Proctor Institute, Utica; House of History, Malone; Penfield Museum, Ironville; Everson Museum, Syracuse, N.Y.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (reprinted from Niagara Mohawk News).
- M-7. "An Unusual Safe Deposit Treasure." [Cherry Hill Papers of Van Rennselaer Family.] Commercial Courier of National Commercial Bank and Trust Co., Albany, N.Y. 12201.
- M-8. Biondi, Mary H. "Dowsing." [Use and legends in northern New York.] Box 43, Canton, N.Y. 13617. (article in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-9. Boyd, Monica. "The Chinese in New York, California, and Hawaii: A Study of Socioeconomic Differentials." [1960.] Phylon, Summer 1971.
- M-10. Bryan, Charles W., Jr. The Raquette--River of the Forest. Adirondack Museum and Syracuse Univ. Press. (book, 1971).
- M-11. Carmer, Carl. Genesee Fever. [Story of Whiskey rebel from Pennsylvania who found refuge in Genesee Valley in 1790's.]
 David McKay Co. (1971 reprint of 1941 edition).
- M-12. Carson, Robert B. Main Line to Oblivion: The Disintegration of New York Railroads in the Twentieth Century. Kennikat Press. (book, 1971).
- M-13. Colvin, Verplank. "Inside Verplank: the Mind of the Man Who Surveyed the Adirondacks." [Letters.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-14. Dean, Leon W. "Wonders of Adironda." [Tall tales.]
 Adirondack Life, Fall 1971.
- M-15. Duguette, John J. "The Philosopher's Camp." [Follensby Pond: summer retreat in 1850's of Emerson, Agassiz, Lowell, and others.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- M-16. Everest, Allan S. Rum Along the Border: The Bootleg Trails of Northern New York. [Oral and journalistic history of prohibition years.] State University College, Plattsburg, N.Y. 12901. (book in progress).



- M-17. Evers, Alf. "Barns: Their Place in Life and Art." York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (reprinted from Publications of the Woodstock Historical Society, 1951).
- M-18. Farley, Ena L. The Negro Freedman in New York State 1865-1873. Dept. of History, State Univ. Col. at Buffalo, 1300 Elmwood Ave., Buffalo, N.Y. 14222. (Ph.D. in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-19. Fowler, Albert (ed.) Cranberry Lake from Wilderness to Adirondack Park. [Ten accounts, mostly firsthand.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-20. Fowler, John. "Western New York in 1830." York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (extract reprinted from his Journal of a Tour in the State of New York in the Year 1830).
- M-21. Furman, Gabriel. "Dutch Days and Ways: Christmas and New Year's." York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- M-22. Gibbs, Alonzo. "In the Footsteps of Bloodgood Cutter: The Poets' 'lariat.'" [Long Island "newspaper poets."] Long Island Forum, Feb. 1972.
- M-23. Gibbs, Iris and Alonzo. "Earmarks of the Hempstead Plains." [Early method of domestic animal identification on L.I.] Long Island Forum, Nov. 1971.
- M-24. Greenberg, Douglas S. Crime and Punishment in 18th Century New York: A Social History. 941 Taughannock Blvd., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. (Ph.D. thesis, ECD 1973).
- M-25. Haber, Michele. "The Day They Turned Off the Falls." [June 12, 1969, Niagara Falls erosion prevention study.] The Yorker, Feb. 1972.
- M-26. Hart, Simon. "The Dutch in North America, 1600-1650." De Halve Maen, July 1971.
- M-27. Hiss, Anthony and Edward Koren. "Postcards from the Hudson: Farewell to the Alexander Hamilton." [Last Hudson River Day Line steamboat, withdrawn from service in September, 1921.] The New Yorker, Nov. 13, 1971.
- M-28. Hooker, Mildred P. Camp Chronicles. [Adirondacks.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-29. Jones, Louis C. (ed.) Growing Up in the Cooper Country: Boyhood Recollections of the New York Frontier. Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1965 edition).



- M-30. Judd, Jacob and Irwin H. Polishook (eds.) Papers of the Twenty-ninth Conference on Early American History. [Theme was early New York History, October 1971.] Herbert H. Lehman Col., CUNY, Bedford Park Blvd. W., Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-31. Kaeser, Edward J. "Inference on the Northern Dispersal of Cony Projectile Points and Net-Impressed Pottery, based on Data from Coastal New York." New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- M-32. Klein, Milton M. "New York in the American Colonies: A New Look." New York History, April 1972.
- M-33. Knight, Lee. "The Philosophers' Camp." [Adirondack summer retreat of Emerson, Lowell, Agassiz, and others, 1857-61.] York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- M-34. LaBastille, Anne. "Canachagala and the Erie Canal." [Feeder lake to old canal.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- M-35.

 . "The Guide: Living Legend of the Adiron-dacks." [Profiles of four contemporary Adirondack guides.]
 Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-36. Lagoudakis, Charilaos. "The 'Greek Fever' of the 1820's." [Philhellenic activity in N.Y.S.] York State Tradition, Winter 1972.
- M-37. Longstreth, Morris T. The Catskills. Kennikat Press. (1970 reprint of 1918 ed.).
- M-38. Macdonald, John M. "The John Macdonald Letter." [1853; to Elizabeth Odell of Flushing.] Westchester Historian, Winter 1972.
- M-39. Marhoefer, Barbara. "Long Island and the America's Cup." [Two parts.] Long Island Forum, Aug. and Sept. 1971.
- M-40. Marr, Marcy. "One More River to Cross." [Underground rail-road in New York.] The Yorker, May-June 1971.
- M-41. Merkel, Robert. "Earthquake." [1894, Saranac Lake.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-42. Morris, Richard B. The Middle Atlantic Tradition: A Documentary History. [Volume in Documentary History of the United States, consisting of primary sources reflecting colonial experience in New York, New Jersey, and Pennsylvania.] Harper & Row. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- M-43. Nelkin, Dorothy. Nuclear Power and its Critics: The Cayuga Lake Controversy. Cornell University Press. Ithaca, N.Y. (book, 1971).



- M-44. O'Donnell, Thomas F. (ed.) A Description of the New Netherlands. [Adriaen Van der Donck's account originally published in 1655.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1841 ed.).
- M-45.

 State. [A young boy's impressions during the Civil War.]
 Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971; intro. by Edmund Wilson).
- M-46. Patterson, Mrs. George E. Elizabeth Cady Stanton and the First Woman's Rights Convention. [Seneca Falls, 1848.] Seneca Falls Historical Society, 55 Cayuga St., Seneca Falls, N.Y. 13148. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-47. Penrick, Daniel J. "The Checkered House." [Tavern built in 1775, 3 miles south of Cambridge in Washington Co.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- M-48. Peterson, John M.C. "Neither Rain Nor Sleet Nor Rate Increase... Could Keep the Adirondack Postmaster From Delivering the Mail." Adirondack Life, Fall 1971.
- M-49. Potter, Barrett. The C.C.C. in New York State. [Civilian Conservation Corps of the 1830's.] S.U.N.Y. Agricultural and Technical College, Alfred, N.Y. 14802. (Ph.D. thesis in progress).
- M-50. Ritchie, William A. "The Archaic in New York." [Stage of area's prehistory.] New York State Archeological Association Bulletin, July 1971.
- M-51. Smith, Julian D. "Century Runs." [Long Island Bicycle Racing.] Long Island Forum, Sept. 1971.
- M-52. Taft, Pauline D. The Happy Valley: The Elegant Eighties in Upstate New York. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-53. White, William C. Just About Everything in the Adirondacks. Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-54. Wilson, Rufus. "Dutch Days and Ways: Dress and Social Gatherings." York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (reprinted from Historic Long Island, 1902).
- M-55. Yeager, Edna H. "History of the Postal System." [Long Island Postal Service, part I.] Long Island Forum, Feb. 1972.
- M-56. Yoshpe, Harry B. Record of Slave Manumission in New York During the Colonial and Early National Periods. State Education Dept., Albany, N.Y. 12224. (pamphlet, 1971: reprinted from Journal of Negro History, Jan. 1941.)



SEE ALSO: A-30; B-21; B-53; B-58; C-117; C-123; C-127; C-142; C-166; D-4; E-5; F-4; F-6; F-9; H-3; J-4; J-19.

PUBLISHERS OF BOOKS CITED

Beacon Press 25 Beacon St. Boston, Ma. 02108

Bobbs - Merrill Co. 3 West 57th St. New York, N.Y. 10019

Christopher Press 35 Scio St. Rochester, N.Y. 14604

College and University Press 263 Chapel St. New Haven, Conn. 06513

Columbia University Press 562 West 113 St. New York, N.Y. 10025

Cornell University Press 124 Roberts Place Ithaca, N.Y. 14850

Da Capo Press 227 West 17th St. New York, N.Y. 10011

David McKay Co. 750 Third Ave. New York, N.Y. 10017

Doubleday & Co. Garden City, N.Y. 11530

Dover Publications 180 Varick St. New York, N.Y. 10014

Duane Waid Interlaken, N.Y. 14847

Edwards Brothers, Inc. Ann Arbor, Mich. 48104

Empire State Weeklies Webster, N.Y. 13669

George Braziller 1 Park Ave. New York, N.Y. 10016

Harper & Row 49 East 33rd St. New York, N.Y. 10017

Havens Press Wheatland, N.Y. 14546

Hoffman Foundation Wayne County Museum 21 Butternut St. Lyons, N.Y. 14489

Kellick 1605 Main St. Niagara Falls, N.Y. 14305

Kennikat Press, Inc. 90 South Bayles Ave. Port Washington, N.Y. 11050

Little, Brown & Co. **34** Beacon Press Boston, Ma. 02108

McCall Publishing Co. 230 Park Ave. New York, N.Y. 10017

New York University Press Washington Sq. New York, N.Y. 10003



Oxford University Press 200 Madison Ave. New York, N. Y. 10016

Praeger
111 Fourth Ave.
New York, N. Y. 10003

Ryan Press Ogdensburg, N. Y. 13669

Schocken Paperbacks 67 Park Ave. New York, N. Y. 10016

State University of 'w York at Albany
Thurlow Terrace
Albany, N. Y. 12201

Stein & Day 7 East 48th St. New York, N. Y. 10017 Syracuse University Press Box 8 University Station Syracuse, N. Y. 13210

Tundra Press
Montreal & Plattsburgh, N. Y.
12910

Union College Press Schenectady, N. Y. 12308

University of Washington Press Seattle, Wash. 98105

Wesleyan University Press Middletown, Conn. 06457

PUBLISHERS OF PERIODICALS CITED

Adirondack Life Adirondack Life Inc. Willsboro, N. Y. 12296

Adventures in Western New York
History
Buffalo and Erie County
Historical Society
25 Nottingham Ct.
Buffalo, N. Y. 14216

American Art Journal 20 East 56th St. New York, N. Y. 10022

American Heritage
American Heritage Publishing
Co.
551 Fifth Ave.
New York, N. Y. 10017

American History Illustrated National Historical Society 1206 Hanover St. Gettysburg, Pu. 17325 American Philosophical Society 104 South Fifth St. Philadelphia, Pa. 19106

Bulletin of the Fort Ticonderoga Museum Fort Ticonderoga Ticonderoga, N. Y. 12883

Bulletin of the New York Public Library Fifth Ave. and 42nd St. New York, N. Y. 10018

Catskill Daily Mail Catskill, N. Y. 12414

Chemung Historical Journal
Chemung County Historical
Society Inc.
204 William St.
c/o Jerome Maltby
Elmira, N. Y. 14904



The Correspondent
New York State American
Revolution Bicentennial
Commission
Office of State History
State Education Department
Albany, N. Y. 12210

The Courier Syracuse University Press Syracuse, N. Y. 13210

Daughters of the American Revolution Magazine Administration Building 1776 D St., N.W. Washington, D.C. 20006

De Halve Maen Holland Society of Ethnohistory University of Kentucky Lexington, Ky. 40506

Eagle-Bulletin and Dewitt News-Times 200 Brooklea Dr. DeWitt, N. Y. 13066

Freedomways Freedomways Associates 799 Broadway New York, N. Y. 10003

The Geographical Society of New York Broadway and 156th St. New York, N. Y. 10032

Historic Preservation
National Trust for Historic
Preservation
748 Jackson Pl.
Washington, D.C. 20006

History News 1315 Eighth Ave. S. Nashville, Tenn. 37203

Huntington Historical Society
Quarterly
P.O. Box 506
2 High St.
Huntington, N. Y. 11743

Society Bulletin
278 Washington St.
Watertown, N. Y. 13601

Journal of Negro History
The Association for the Study
of Negro Life and History, Inc.
1538 Ninth St. N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20001

Journal of the Society of
Architectural Historians
Box 94
Media Pa. 19063

Knimerbocker Mews-Union Star 645 Ebany-Shaker Road Albery, N. Y. 12201

Limingston County Leader Germo, N. Y. 14454

Long Esland Forum
Box 215
West Islip, N. Y. 11795

The Mennissenk 138 Pke Street Port Servis, N. Y. 12771

New York State Museum and
Science Service
The University of the State
of New York
The State Education Department
Albany, N. Y. 12224

New York 207 East 32nd Street New York, N. Y. 10016

New York Folklore Quarterly
New York Folklore Society
c/o New York State Historical
Association
Cooperstown, N. Y. 13326

The New-York Historical Society Quarterly
The New-York Historical Society Central Park West and 77th St.
New York, N. Y. 10024



New York History New York Historical Society Cooperstown, N. Y. 13326

The New Yorker
25 West 43rd St.
New York, N. Y. 10036

Niagara Frontier
Buffalo and Erie County
Historical Society
25 Nottingham Ct.
Buffalo, N. Y. 14216

Phylon
The Atlantic University
Review of Race Culture
Atlanta University
Atlanta, Ga. 30314

Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association P.O. Box 8 Canton, N. Y. 13617

Rochester History Rochester Public Library 115 South Ave. Rochester, N. Y. 14604

Schoharie County Historical Review Schoharie County Historical Society Old Stone Fort, Main St. c/o Clifford G. Fisher Schoharie, N. Y. 12157

The Staten Island Historian Staten Island Historical Society Court and Center Sts. c/o Loring McMillen Staten Island, N. Y. 10304

The Westchester Historian
Westchester County Historical
Society
43 Read Ave.
c/o Mrs. Amos Strubble
Tuckahoe, N. Y. 10707

Western Pennsylvania Historical Magazine 4338 Bigelow Boulevard Pittsburg, Pa. 14213

William and Mary Quarterly Institute of Early American History and Culture Williamsburg, Va. 23185

Yesteryears 120 Fernpark Drive Camillus, N. Y. 13031

York State Tradition Saranac, N. Y. 12981

The Yorker
New York State Historical
Association
Cooperstown, N. Y. 12236



- C-156. Watkins, Joseph. "The City of Utica, Oneida County." [Part XIV.] Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- C-157. Weir, Leona R. History of Gospel Hill, Guilford, New York and Its People. Gospel Hill, Guilford, N.Y. 13780. (book in progress).
- C-158. Weller, Ethelyn. A History of the Town of Brant. [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-159.

 Centennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-160.

 Quicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society,
 Buffalo N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-161.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-162.

 . A History of the Town of North Collins.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society,

 Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-163.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-164.

 Quicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society,
 Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1971).
- C-165.

 [Sesquicentennial.] Buffalo and Erie Co. Historical Society, Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (pamphlet, 1972).
- C-166. Wells, Phyllis. "Covered Bridges of Yesteryear: A List of Sites Where Covered Bridges Once Stood in New York State." York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- C-167. White, John B. The Centenary Community. [Settlement of pioneers around Centenary Church and school in the Town of Sodus, Wayne Co., N.Y.] Hoffman Foundation. (essay, 1972).
- C-168. Winters, Nelson R. "Gouverneur 50 Years Ago." [St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- C-169. Wood, Mabel C. "Through the Years with Show Biz." [Theatrical Entertainment in 19th C. Elmira.] Chemung Historical Journal, Dec. 1971.



- C-170. Yancey, Susan. A History of the Coal Trestle at Sodus Point. Hoffman Foundation.
- SEE ALSO: A-19; A-22; A-28; A-32; B-2; B-28; B-34; B-37; B-39; B-43; B-48; B-57; B-69; G-4; G-8; J-6; J-11; J-15; J-24; K-3; K-5; K-6; K-7; M-46; M-47.

COUNTIES

- D-1. Anonymous. "The Ferries A Story in Pictures of What Were Once Staten Island's Only Regular Routes to the Outside World." Staten Island Historian, July-Sept. 1971.
- D-2. "Rides and Rambles on Staten Island." Staten Island Historian, Oct.-Dec. 1971. (reprinted from The Pointer, June 1894).
- D-3.

 . "1793: To the King -- One Bill for 1017
 Cords of Wood. [Staten Islander's supply of wood to British.] Staten Island Historian, Jan.-March 1972.
- D-4. Atwater, Edward C. Demographic Study of Monroe County Physicians in the First Half of the 19th Century. 195 Whitewood La., Rochester, N.Y. 14618. (in progress).
- D-5. Barnes, Katherine B. The Genesee Country. [1790-1972.] (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-6. Barons, Virginia M. (ed.) History of Music in Genesee County. 131 West Main St., Batavia, N.Y. 14020. (pamphlet, 1972).
- D-7. Cardinal, James. "The County Seat is Moved." [1759, from Town of Westchester, Bronx, to White Plains.] Westchester Historian, Autumn 1971.
- D-8. Committee on Roads and Bridges of Westchester Co. "West-chester Bridges 1838-1859." [Financial report.] West-chester Historian, Summer 1971.
- D-9. Cooper, Susan F. Rural Hours. [Fenimore Cooper's daughter's journal of mid-19th century life in Cooperstown area.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1887 ed.).
- D-10. Cortland County Historical Society. Residents of Cortland County, N.Y., 1800-1810. Cortland County Historical Society, 25 Homer Ave., Cortland, N.Y. 13045. (pamphlet, 1972).
- D-11. Darcy Communications, Inc., advised by Monroe Co. history office. Preface to Tomorrow: Monroe County History Briefly Told and Illustrated. Monroe County, Rochester, N.Y. 14614.



- D-12. Dunn, Walter S. (ed.) Erie County, 1870-1970. 25 Nottingham Ct., Buffalo, N.Y. 14216. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-13. Everest, Allan S. Buildings Worth Preserving in Clinton and Essex Counties. Tundra Press. (book, 1972).
- D-14. Faibisoff, Sylvia G. and Susan Feldman. "A Bibliography of Newspapers in Fourteen New York State Counties." [Second, third and fourth installments: Allegany, Broome, and Cayuga counties.] New York History, Oct. 1971, Jan. & April 1972.
- D-15. Fisher, J. Sheldon. Pictorial History of Ontario County. [Emphasis on Founding.] Valentown Museum, Fishers, N.Y. 14453. (pamphlet, 1972).
- D-16. Gould, Ernest C. "The Pioneers and Education: One Room Schools and Academies." Jefferson Co. Historical Society Bulletin, Jan. 1972.
- D-17. Hills, William P. "That First Meeting, May 10, 1886: Organization of the Jefferson County Historical Society." Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin, July 1971.
- D-18. Houghton, William M. Selected Topics of Rural Historical Interest and Explanatory Drawings. [Madison Co. architecture, artifacts, economy, etc.] Madison Co. Historical Society, 435 Main St., Oneida, N.Y. 13421. (book, 1971).
- D-19. Jackson, Kenneth T. The Process of Suburbanization in West-chester County. 706 Hamilton Hall, Columbia Univ., New York, N.Y. 10027. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- D-20. Kammen, Carol K. Sources for the Study of Local History: [Tompkins County, N.Y. 1326 East State St., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- D-21. Keith, Herbert F. "Old Guides of the Oswegatchie River." [St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Co. Historical Association, April 1972.
- D-22. Knap, Thomas S. "Manzanita Island." [St. Lawrence River.] The Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, July 1971.
- D-23. Lindsley, Grant N. Fifty Years--1919 to 1969--of the American Legion in Oswego County. New Haven, N.Y. 13121. (book, 1972).
- D-24. McMillen, Harlow. Documentary History of Staten Island during the American Revolution. Staten Island Historical Society, Staten Island, N.Y. 10306. (book in progress, ECD 1973).



- D-25. Nivus, Albert. "Schuyler County: The Major Schuyler County Land Tracts and Their Owners." Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- D-26. Race, Susan K. "Highway of History: Canton his emsburg, 1908-9." The Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Communistrical Association, July 1971.
- D-27. Ragan, Steve. "Grassroots Fourth Estate: The sin St. Lawrence County." Quarterly of the St. Lawrence Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- D-28. Roberts, John M. Social Growth -- Oneida Co.

 Committee For New Nations, 5828 S. Univ. Ave.

 (Ph.D. thesis in progress).
- D-29. Shaeffer, James B. "A Medical History: Jeffer unty Medicine Had & Modest Start." Jefferson Count orical Society Bulletin, April 1972.
- D-30. Shutt, Donald. "Howe's Cave Early Recognized ure's Wonder." Schoharie County Historical Review, 1972.
- D-31. Smith, Mabel P. The Revolutionary War in Greens nty. 251 Main St., Catskill, N.Y. 12414. (in progre
- D-32. Smith, Philip H. Legends of the Shawangunk (Sh. mm) and Its Environs. [Including historical sketches, anaphical notices, and thrilling border incidents and adverses relating to those portions of the counties of Orange ter, and Sullivan lying in the Shawangunk region.] Sy use University Press. (1971 reprint of 1887 edition: oreword by Carl Carmer).
- D-33. Tompkins, Louise. Dutchess County Emerges From J: Wilderness Years. [Vanderburgh Family.] Dutchess County Emerges From J: Wilderness Years. [Vanderburgh Family.] Dutchess County Emerges From J: Wilderness Years. [Vanderburgh Family.] Dutchess County Emerges From J: Wilderness Years. [Vanderburgh Family.]
- D-34. Weinman, Paul L. and Thomas P. "The Satisfaction of ite." [East bank of Coxsackie Creek, Greene Co.] New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- D-35. Willett, John. "The Settlement and Organization of Seneca County." [Installment I, including Seneca Co. bibliography.] Yesteryears, Winter 1971.
- <u>SEE ALSO</u>: A-6; A-17; A-23; B-22; C-74; H-15.



NEW YORK CITY

- E-1. Anonymous. "Traunces Tavern: Where the General Said Farewell..." [Site of Washington's farewell to his officers in 1783.] American History Illustrated, I. 1972.
- E-2. Barlow, Elizabe The Forests and Wellands of New York City Little, Brown & Jon (book, 1971).
- E-3. "New Yor. A Once are Fitted a Arcadia." [Ecological prospective of N.Y.C.] New Yor. Nov. 29, 1971.
- E-4. Bellush, Jeseil as Cavid Stephen M. Race and Politics in New Tark City: Five Cases in Making. Praeger. (book, 1971)
- E-5. Bldom, Steven. The Interactions because Blacks and Jews in New York City. 100-1930. 359 West 12 ft., Apt. # 10, tt/o Goethelf, New North N.Y. 10023. Thesis in progress, ECD 1974).
- E-6. Connolly, Harold .. Blacks in Brooklyn From 1900 to 1960. New York University, Washington Sq. - New York, N.Y. 10073. (Ph.D. thesis, 1972).
- E-7. EitzSimons, Neel (ed.) The Reminiscences of John B. Jervis, Engineer of the Old Croton. Foreword by Robert Vogel. [Croton Aqueduct, New York City, 1847.] Scracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- E-8. Gilman, Lois J. The Development of a Neisborhood, Bedford, Brooklyn, 1850-1880: A Case Study. Fig. 113 St., 5A, New York, N.I. 10025. (M.A. thesis, 27)
- E-9. Glazer, Nathan. "'Regulating' the Poor-or Ruining Them."
 [Welfare Situation in N.Y.C.] New Yor, Oct. 11, 1971.
- E-10. Greenberg, M., Carey, G., Zobler, __. and Hordon, R. "A Geographical Systems Analysis of the Water Supply Networks of the New York Metropolitan Region." The Geographical Review, July 10-1.
- E-11. Heale, M.J. "The New York Society for Prevention of Pauperism 1817-1823." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1971.
- E-12. Hellman, Peter. "The Mystery House at 61st and Fifth." [Dodge Mansion.] New York, Oct. 11, 1971.
- E-13. Horsmanden, Daniel. The New York Conspirate [Ed. by Thomas J. Davis; Horsmanden was a judge to called conspiracy of slaves in N.Y.C., 1741.] Bearn Press. (1971 reprint of 1744 edition).



- E-14. Huggins, Nathan I. Harlem Renaissance. [Bloom literary and other arts, N.Y.C., mainly in the 1920's.] (Ford University Press. (book, 1972).
- E-15. Kessmer, Thomas. New York City's Immigrants and Mountain and Geographic Mobility of Italians and Jews. 2 1 54th St., New York, N.Y. 10022. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1974).
- E-16. McMillen, Harlow. "Agriculture of Richmon: Tounty." [Dr. Samuel Ackerly's report of 1842.] Staten Land March 1971.
- E-17. Perlman, Daniel. "Organizations of the Free West i New York City, 1800-1860." The Journal of Negro Engloy July 1971.
- E-18. Pessen, Edward. "A Social and Economic Portral of ack-sonian Brooklyn: Inequality, Social Immobility and Class Distinction in the Nation's Seventh City." New ork Historical Society Quarterly, Oct. 1971.
- E-19. Pileggi, Nicholas. "Risorgimento: The Red, White and Greening of New York." [Formation of N.Y.C. branch of the Filelian-American Civil Rights League.] New York, June 7, 10-1.
- E-20. Pinkney, Alphonso and Woock. Poverty and Falitate Harlem. College and University Press. (book, 1971).
- E-21. Posner, Russell M. "An Englishman's Tour of New York in 1830." [Sir Henry Singer Keating, 1804-88.] New York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1971.
- E-22. Rosenwaike, Ira. Population History of New York City. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1972).
- E-23. Simon, Arthur. Stuyvesant Town, USA: Pattern For Two Americas. New York University Press. (book, 1971)
- E-24. Simon, Donald E. The Public Park Movement in Bracklyn, 1824-1873. 1911 Dorchester Rd., Brooklyn, N.Y. 11226. (Ph.D. thesis, 1972).
- E-25. Smith, Robert P. In the Pursuit of Happiness: Brooklyn at Play, 1890-1898. 142 Hicks St., Apt. 4D, Brooklyn, N.Y. 11201. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1972).
- E-26. Spatt, Beverly M. A Proposal to Change the Structure of City Planning: Case Study of New York City. Praeger Publishers. (book, 1971).
- E-27. Weingarten, Gene. "East Bronx Story -- Return of the Street Gangs." New York, March 27, 1972.



- E-28. Wilkenfeld, Bruce M. "The New York City Common Council, 16-3-1805." New York History, July 1971.
- SEE ALSO: A-1; A-12; B-5; B-23; B-24; B-46; B-66; H-13; M-27.

ECONOMIC LIFE

- Box 43, Cantan, N.Y. 13617. (article in progress, ECD 1972).
- F-2. Bradley, I. J. and Davisson, William. "New York Maritime Trade: Ship Voyage Patterns, 1715-1765." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, Oct. 1971.
- Darlington, Tames W. The Geography of the New York, Ontario and Western Bailway. 817 Sumner Ave., Syracuse, N.Y. 13210.
 (M.E. thesis in progress, ECD 1972).
- F-4. Durant, Wenneth (ed.) Guide-Boat Days and Ways. [Adirondacks] Edirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book 1974, reprint of 1963 edition).
- Fowler, William M. "A Yankee Peddler, Nonimportation, and the New York Merchants." [N.Y.C., 1772.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1972.
- F-6. Fried, Frederick. "Early Carousel Makers of New York State." Naho, Spring 1972.
- F-7. Helmer, William F. History of the Ulster & Delaware Railroad. SUNY Agricultural & Technical College, Morrisville, N.Y. 13408. (book in progress, 1972).
- F-8.

 Way. SUNY Agricultural & Technical College, Morrisville, N.Y. 13408. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- F-9. Ivory, Paul W. "Packet Boat Runners on the Erie Canal." [Pitchmen For passenger boat companies, 1820-50.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- F-10. Okada, Yasuo. "Squires' Diary: New York Agriculture in Transition, 1840-1860." New York History, Oct. 1971.
- SEE ALSO: B-30; B-31; B-36; C-18; C-23; C-47; C-55; C-76; C-93; C-96; C-99; C-111; C-112; C-114; C-121; C-125; C-151; C-154; D-1; E-8; E-11; E-15; E-16; E-18; M-9.

EDUCATION

G-1. Holl, Jack M. Juvenile Reform in the Progressive Era: William R. George and the Junior Republic Movement. [Freeville, N.Y.] Cornell Univ. Press. (book, 1971).



- G-2. Hundley, Mildred. "Pierrepont Schools." [St. Lawrence County.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historic Association. Oct. 1971.
- G-3. Mabee, Carleton. History of the Semante Black Schools of New York State, 1704-1942. Dept. of mistory, State Univ. College, New Paltz, N.Y. 12561. Dook in progress.
- G-4. Mason, John W. "North Country Beacc.." [SUNY at Platts-burgh.] Amondack Life, Spring 197.
- G-5. Parkman, Aubrey. "President Hill and the Sectarian Challenge at the University of Rochester." Rochester History, Oct. 1971.
- G-6. Pickett, Robert S. House of Refuge: Origins of Juvenile Reform in New York State, 1815-1857. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- G-7. Somers, Wayne. Early Scientific Books in Schaffer Library, Union College. [Pre-1800 works, Union College Studies No. 1, intro. by Brooke Hindle.] Union College. (book, 1972).
- G-8. Taylor, Eva. "Academy of Science, Elmira, N.Y." Chemung Historical Journal, June 1971.
- G-9. Weisz, Howami. "Irish-American Attitudes and the Americanization of the English-Language Parochial School." [N.Y.S.] New York History, April 1972.

SEE ALSO: B-25; D-16.

GOVERNMENT AND POLITICS

- H-1. Anderson, Samuel K. "Public Lotteries in Colonial New York." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1972.
- H-2. Barkan, Elliott R. "The Emergence of a Whig Persuasion: Conservatism, Democratism, and the New York State Whigs." New York History, Oct. 1971.
- H-3. Bonomi, Patricia V. A Factious People: Politics and Society in Colonial New York. Columbia University Press. (book, 1971).
- H-4. Boorgem, Hendrik. Conscience and Politics: The Republican Party in New York, 1854-1861. Division of Humanities, SUNY College at Purchase, N.Y. 10577. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1973).
- H-5. D'Innocenzo, Michael and John J. Turner, Jr. "The President and the Press: Lincoln, James Cordon Bennett, and the Election of 1864." History Dept., Hofstra Univ., Hempstead, N.Y. 11550. (completed article).



- H-6. Ham ton, Virginia V. "The True-blue Democrat." [James A. Farley b. 1888.] American Herimage, Aug. 1971.
- H-7. Harran, Clay R. "De Witt Climon and Parwisanship: The Development of Clintonianism from 1821 to 1820." New-York Historical Exciety Quarterly, April 1372.
- H-8. Jaffe, Julian F. Crusade Against Radicelism: New York During the Red Scare, 1914-1924. Kennikat Press, Inc. (back in imagress, ECL 1972).
- H-9. Kas Alv Politics in New York State, 1800-1830. Syracuse inversity Press. (both, 1971).
- H-10. LaGumma, Entvatore J. "Ethnic Groups in the New York Electrons of 1972." New York History, Jan. 1972.
- H-11. Lovizo, Paul W. An Evaluation of the New York State Election Laws, Procedures, and Practices 1635-1795. Hofstra University, Hempstead, N.Y. M.A. Thesis, 1971).
- H-12. Martin, Roscoe C. Water for New York: A Study in State Administration of Water Resources. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- H-13. Moscow, Warren. "How Carmine DeSapio Made Ends Meet." New York, Oct. 11, 1971.
- H-14. Olson, Gary D. "The Soderstrom Incident: A Reflection upon Federal-State Relations Under the Articles of Confederation."
 [1782.] New-York Historical Society Quarterly, April 1971.
- H-15. Osborne, Chaster G. "Yours Respectfully, B.T. Hutchinson" [1803-77; influential in N.Y.S. politics as Suffolk Country Town Clerk. Long Island Forum, July 1971.
- H-16. Escns, The chilus. The Old Conviction Wersus the New Falties: New York Antifederalists and the Radical Whigh Endition. 161 W. 105th St., #452, New York, N.Y. 10025. (Ph.L. thesis in progress).
- H-17. Pratt John W. A Cycle of New York Gwarmers. [Administrations of Smith, F. Robsevelt, Lemman and Dewey.] History Dept., State Univ. of N.Y. at Stony Frank, M.W. 11790. (book in progress ECD 1975).
- H-18. Steir Endith. "The Impact of the New Deal on New York Politics: Kerneth Simson and the Republican Party." New York Historical Society Quarterly, Jan. 1972.
- H-19. Strong Name W. "Political Climates Never Change." [Excepts from three early 19th C. letters to Long Islander Thomas E. Strong.] Long Island Forum, Nov. 1971.



- H-20. Thon, Susan C. Woman Suffrage, New York. Law Library, Cornell Univ., Ethaca, N.I. 1485D. (book in progress).
- H-21. Wright, Langdon G. Local Envernment in Seventeenth Century New York. 11 Cook St., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850.
- SEE ALSO: B-7; B-9; B-12; B-23; E-24; E-29; B-30; B-35; B-35; B-65; B-65; B-67; C-34; D-24; E-4; E-20; E-28; M-49.

MILITARY

- J-1. Anonymous. "1778 Orderly Epok." [Washington's Army in White Plains, 1778.] West-hester Historian, Summer 1971.
- J-2. Ball, Edward C. The American Strategy and French Role in the Fort Stanwix Treaty of 1784. Rome Historical Society 112 Spring St., Rome, N.Y. 13440. (pamphlet, 1972).
- J-3. Brant Joseph. "Letter Written by Joseph Brant to Lieut. Col. Boston of the British Army, Oguwage 29th July 1779." [Battle of Minisink.] The Mennissenk, Aug. 1971.
- J-4. Comen, Ronald D. "The New England Colonies and the Dutch Recapture of New York, 1673-1674." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, Jan. 1972.
- J-5. Cullen, Joseph P. "The Fight for New York." [From April issue devoted to the American Revolution.] American History Illustrated, April 1972.
- J-6. Donaldson, William R. "The Fort Falonge Story." [Long Island Fort captured from British in 1781.] Huntington Historical Society, March 1972.
- J-7. Frese, 3.J., Joseph R. "A Trumbull Map of Fort Ticonderoga Rediscovered." Bulletim of the Fort Ticonderoga Museum, Jume 1971.
- J-8. Furneaux, Robert. The Battle of Saratoga. [Great Battles of the Modern World.] Stein and May. (book, 1971).
- J-9. Hathorn, Col. John. "Letter Written by Col. John Eathorn, Commander of Militia at Battle of Minisink, to George Clinton, Governor of New York State, Five Days After Mattle Occurred on July 22, 1779." The Mennissenk, Aug. 1971.
- J-10. Hislop, Codman. Treason at West Point, 1780. Dorset, Vt. 052 . (Dock in progress, ECD 1873).
- J-ll. Hoffman, Renoda. "White Plains -- Two Centuries Later."
 [Battle site memorials.] American History Illustrated,
 July 1971.



- J-12. Keller, Allan. "The Battles for New York." [Fall of 1776: Harlem Heights, White Plains, Fort Washington.] American History Illustrated, July 1971.
- J-13. Klein, Milton M. William Livingston's "A Review of the Military Operations in North America." [Evaluation of 1757 publication, essay in the Colonial Legacy, vol. II, ed. by Lawrence H. Leder.] Harper & Row. (book, 1971).
- J-14. Marszalek, John F. "A Black Cadet at West Point." [1876-80; Johnson C. Whittaker.] American Heritage, Aug. 1971.
- J-15. Naylor, Colin T. "Two British Raids." [Van Cortlandtville, 1777.] Westchester Historian, Summer 1971.
- J-16. Nelson, Paul. "The Gates-Arnold Quarrel, 1777." New-York Historical Society Quarterly, July 1971.
- J-17. Rahmer, Frederick A. Fort Stanwix, A Brief History. [Rome, N.Y.] P.O. Box 123, Rome, N.Y. 13440. (pamphlet, 1972).
- J-18.

 Stanwix, The Fort That Never Surrendered.

 [Pre-1758 to 1827.] P.O. Box 123, Rome, N.Y. 13440.

 (book, ECD 1972).
- J-19. Rezneck, Samuel. Jewish Participation in the American Revolution. 4501 Connecticut Ave. N.W., Washington, D.C. 20008. (book in progress, ECD 1974).
- J-20. Rossie, Jonathan G. A Study of the Causes and Significance of Loyalism in the Mohawk Valley Region during the American Revolution. History Dept., St. Lawrence Univ., Canton, N.Y. 13617. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- J-21. Schwartzman, Daniel. "The Day the Nazis Landed on Long Island." The Yorker, May-June 1971.
- J-22. Speierl, Charles F. "Patchogue's Kansas Brigade." [Union Twelfth Militia; in two parts.] Long Island Forum, Nov. 1971.
- J-23. Stone, William L. The Campaign of Lieut. Gen. John Burgoyne and the Expedition of Lieut. Col. Barry St. Leger. DeCapo Press, 227 W. 17th St., New York, N.Y. 10011. (book, 1970, reprint of 1877 edition).
- J-24. Workmaster, Wallace F. "The Forts of Oswego: A Study in the Art of Defense." [Colonial period through W.W. II.] Northeast Historical Archaeology, Spring 1972.
- SEF ALSO: B-13; B-15; B-47; B-49; B-51; B-52; B-55; B-59; C-17; C-71; D-31; E-1.



RELIGION AND CHURCHES

- K-1. Braman, Elizabeth E. "Lutheran Church, Landmark Destroyed by Fire." [Central Bridge, Schoharie County.] Schoharie County Historical Review, Fall-Winter 1971.
- K-2. Dalsimer, Marlyn H. Women and the Omeida Community, 1837-1880. 53 Cheever Place, Brooklyn, N.Y. 1203. (Ph.D. thesis in progress, ECD 1973).
- K-3. Lacy, Ruth B. A History of the First Baptist Church of Ithaca, 1971, 150th Anniversary. Cornell Univ. Archives, Olin Library, Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. (photocopy, 1971).
- K-4. Naylor, Colin T. "A Church Is Demolished." [Old South St. Methodist Church in Peekskill, formed 1795.] Westchester Historian, Spring 1972.
- K-5. Rutherford, Maxine B. "The First 150 Years: Hammond Presbyterian Church." [Hammond, St. Lawrence Co.] Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association, Oct. 1971.
- K-6. Schaeffer, Francis L. "Fort as Church Followed by Present: Reformed in 1844." [Schoharie Reformed Church.] Schoharie County Historical Review, Fall-Winter 1971.
- K-7. Verbridge, Susan C. The Pultneyville Reformed Church: Sketches. Hoffman Foundation. (essay, 1972).

SEE ALSO: B-50; C-16; C-59; C-107.

INDIANS

- L-1. Anonymous. "Dancing, Foods and Cradle Boards." [Iroquois.] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-2. "Ga Gee Qua A (Lacrosse) and Snow Snake." [Iroquois games.] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-3. "Growing Up." [Onondaga children.] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-4. . "The Mid-Winter Ceremonial of the Iroquois." The Mennisink, Feb. 1972.
- L-5. "The Onondaga -- Through the Eyes, Ears and Hands of the Young People." Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-6. "Traditional Clothing." [Iroquois.] Yorker, March-April 1971.



- L-7. "What is the Reservation Like Today?"
 [Onondaga Indian Reservation, south of Syracuse, N.Y.]
 Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-8. Collins, Helen. "The League of the Iroquois." Western Pennsylvania Historical Magazine, April 1972.
- L-9. Fenton, William N. (ed.) Parker on the Iroquois. [Three monographs by Arthur C. Parker originally published as bulletins by the New York State Museum: Iroquois Uses of Maize and Other Food Plants; The Code of Handsome Lake, the Seneca Prophet; the Constitution of the Fire Nations.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of editions published between 1910-16).
- L-10. Funk, Robert E. "The Davenport Creamery Site, Delaware County, New York." [Davenport Center, N.Y.] New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- L-11. Graymont, Barbara. The Iroquois in the American Revolution. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1972).
- L-12. Logan, Adelphena. "The Un-gwe-no-sau-nee." [Explanation of Iroquois' name for themselves, meaning "we builders of homes."] Yorker, March-April 1971.
- L-13. Noonan, Karen K. "Witches Walk # 1: A Preliminary Site Report." [North bank of Allegheny River, south of Salamanica, N.Y.] New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- L-14. Ruttenber, E.M. History of the Indian Tribes of Hudson's River, Their Origin, Manners and Customs; Tribal and Sub-Tribal Organizations; Wars, Treaties, Etc. Kennikat Press. (bock, 1971).
- L-15. Trelease, Allen W. Indian Affairs in Colonial New York: The Seventeenth Century. Kennikat Press. (1971 reprint of 1960 edition).
- L-16. Tuck, James A. Onondaga Iroquois Prehistory: A Study in Settlement Archaeology. Syracuse University Press, Syracuse, N.Y. 13210. (book, 1971).

SEE ALSO: C-37; C-77.

MISCELLANEOUS AND STATEWIDE

- M-1. Ahlstrom, Harold J. (ed.) Chautauqua Lake Steamboats. Fenton Historical Society, 68 South Main St., Jamestown, N.Y. 14701. (booklet, 1971).
- M-2. Ainsworth, Catherine H. "Some Italian Folktales of the Niagara Frontier." New York Folklore Quarterly, Dec. 1971.



- M-3. Anderson, Charles. "Blacks in the New York News Community." Afro-American Affairs, April 1971.
- M-4. Anonymous. "Adirondack Profile." [Mount Marcy.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-5. "Adirondack Profile: Giant of the Valley Adirondack Life, rall 1971.
- M-6. "Museums Great and Small." [Fire fighting museum, Hudson; Muson-Williams-Proctor Institute, Utica; House of History, Malone; Penfield Museum, Ironville; Everson Museum, Syracuse, N.Y.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (reprinted from Niagara Mohawk News).
- M-7.

 "An Unusual Safe Deposit Treasure." [Cherry Hill Papers of Van Rennselaer Family.] Commercial Courier of National Commercial Bank and Trust Co., Albany, N.Y. 12201.
- M-8. Biondi, Mary H. "Dowsing." [Use and legends in northern New York.] Box 43, Canton, N.Y. 13617. (article in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-9. Boyd, Monica. "The Chinese in New York, California, and Hawaii: A Study of Socioeconomic Differentials." [1960.] Phylon, Summer 1971.
- M-10. Bryan, Charles W., Jr. The Raquette--River of the Forest. Adirondack Museum and Syracuse Univ. Press. (book, 1971).
- M-11. Carmer, Carl. Genesee Fever. [Story of Whiskey rebel from Pennsylvania who found refuge in Genesee Valley in 1790's.]
 David McKay Co. (1971 reprint of 1941 edition).
- M-12. Carson, Robert B. Main Line to Oblivion: The Disintegration of New York Railroads in the Twentieth Century. Kennikat Press. (book, 1971).
- M-13. Colvin, Verplank. "Inside Verplank: the Mind of the Man Who Surveyed the Adirondacks." [Letters.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-14. Dean, Leon W. "Wonders of Adironda." [Tall tales.] Adirondack Life, Fall 1971.
- M-15. Duguette, John J. "The Philosopher's Camp." [Follensby Pond: summer retreat in 1850's of Emerson, Agassiz, Lowell, and others.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- M-16. Everest, Allan S. Rum Along the Border: The Bootleg Trails of Northern New York. [Oral and journalistic history of prohibition years.] State University College, Plattsburg, N.Y. 12901. (book in progress).



- M-17. Evers, Alf. "Barns: Their Place in Life and Art." York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (reprinted from Publications of the Woodstock Historical Society, 1951).
- M-18. Farley, Ena L. The Negro Freedman in New York State 1865-1873. Dept. of History, State Univ. Col. at Buffalo, 1300 Elmwood Ave., Buffalo, N.Y. 14222. (Ph.D. in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-19. Fowler, Albert (ed.) Cranberry Lake from Wilderness to Adirondack Park. [Ten accounts, mostly firsthand.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-20. Fowler, John. "Western New York in 1830." York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (extract reprinted from his Journal of a Tour in the State of New York in the Year 1830).
- M-21. Furman, Gabriel. "Dutch Days and Ways: Christmas and New Year's." York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- M-22. Gibbs, Alonzo. "In the Footsteps of Bloodgood Cutter: The Poets' 'lariat.'" [Long Island "newspaper poets."] Long Island Forum, Feb. 1972.
- M-23. Gibbs, Iris and Alonzo. "Earmarks of the Hempstead Plains." [Early method of domestic animal identification on L.I.] Long Island Forum, Nov. 1971.
- M-24. Greenberg, Douglas S. Crime and Punishment in 18th Century New York: A Social History. 941 Taughannock Blvd., Ithaca, N.Y. 14850. (Ph.D. thesis, ECD 1973).
- M-25. Haber, Michele. "The Day They Turned Off the Falls." [June 12, 1969, Niagara Falls erosion prevention study.] The Yorker, Feb. 1972.
- M-26. Hart, Simon. "The Dutch in North America, 1600-1650." De Halve Maen, July 1971.
- M-27. Hiss, Anthony and Edward Koren. "Postcards from the Hudson: Farewell to the Alexander Hamilton." [Last Hudson River Day Line steamboat, withdrawn from service in September, 1921.] The New Yorker, Nov. 13, 1971.
- M-28. Hooker, Mildred P. Camp Chronicles. [Adirondacks.] Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-29. Jones, Louis C. (ed.) Growing Up in the Cooper Country: Boyhood Recollections of the New York Frontier. Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1965 edition).



- M-30. Judd, Jacob and Irwin H. Polishook (eds.) Papers of the Twenty-ninth Conference on Early American History. [Theme was early New York History, October 1971.] Herbert H. Lehman Col., CUNY, Bedford Park Blvd. W., Bronx, N.Y. 10468. (book in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-31. Kaeser, Edward J. "Inference on the Northern Dispersal of Cony Projectile Points and Net-Impressed Pottery, based on Data from Coastal New York." New York State Archeological Bulletin, July 1971.
- M-32. Klein, Milton M. "New York in the American Colonies: A New Look." New York History, April 1972.
- M-33. Knight, Lee. "The Philosophers' Camp." [Adirondack summer retreat of Emerson, Lowell, Agassiz, and others, 1857-61.] York State Tradition, Fall 1971.
- M-34. LaBastille, Anne. "Canachagala and the Erie Canal." [Feeder lake to old canal.] Adirondack Life, Spring 1972.
- M-35.

 . "The Guide: Living Legend of the Adiron-dacks." [Profiles of four contemporary Adirondack guides.]
 Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-36. Lagoudakis, Charilaos. "The 'Greek Fever' of the 1820's." [Philhellenic activity in N.Y.S.] York State Tradition, Winter 1972.
- M-37. Longstreth, Morris T. The Catskills. Kennikat Press. (1970 reprint of 1918 ed.).
- M-38. Macdonald, John M. "The John Macdonald Letter." [1853; to Elizabeth Odell of Flushing.] Westchester Historian, Winter 1972.
- M-39. Marhoefer, Barbara. "Long Island and the America's Cup." [Two parts.] Long Island Forum, Aug. and Sept. 1971.
- M-40. Marr, Marcy. "One More River to Cross." [Underground rail-road in New York.] The Yorker, May-June 1971.
- M-41. Merkel, Robert. "Earthquake." [1894, Saranac Lake.] Adirondack Life, Winter 1972.
- M-42. Morris, Richard B. The Middle Atlantic Tradition: A Documentary History. [Volume in Documentary History of the United States, consisting of primary sources reflecting colonial experience in New York, New Jersey, and Pennsylvania.] Harper & Row. (book in progress, ECD 1973).
- M-43. Nelkin, Dorothy. Nuclear Power and its Critics: The Cayuga Lake Controversy. Cornell University Press. Ithaca, N.Y. (book, 1971).



- M-44. O'Donnell, Thomas F. (ed.) A Description of the New Metherlands. [Adriaen Van der Donck's account originally published in 1655.] Syracuse University Press. (1971 reprint of 1841 ed.).
- M-45.

 State. [A young boy's impressions during the Civil War.]
 Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971; intro. by Edmund Wilson).
- M-46. Patterson, Mrs. George E. Elizabeth Cady Stanton and the First Woman's Rights Convention. [Seneca Falls, 1848.] Seneca Falls Historical Society, 55 Cayuga St., Seneca Falls, N.Y. 13148. (pamphlet in progress, ECD 1972).
- M-47. Penrick, Daniel J. "The Checkered House." [Tavern built in 1775, 3 miles south of Cambridge in Washington Co.] York State Tradition, Summer 1971.
- M-48. Peterson, John M.C. "Neither Rain Nor Sleet Nor Rate Increase... Could Keep the Adirondack Postmaster From Delivering the Mail." Adirondack Life, Fall 1971.
- M-49. Potter, Barrett. The C.C.C. in New York State. [Civilian Conservation Corps of the 1830's.] S.U.N.Y. Agricultural and Technical College, Alfred, N.Y. 14802. (Ph.D. thesis in progress).
- M-50. Ritchie, William A. "The Archaic in New York." [Stage of area's prehistory.] New York State Archeological Association Bulletin, July 1971.
- M-51. Smith, Julian D. "Century Runs." [Long Island Bicycle Racing.] Long Island Forum, Sept. 1971.
- M-52. Taft, Pauline D. The Happy Valley: The Elegant Eighties in Upstate New York. Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-53. White, William C. Just About Everything in the Adirondacks. Adirondack Museum and Syracuse University Press. (book, 1971).
- M-54. Wilson, Rufus. "Dutch Days and Ways: Dress and Social Gatherings." York State Tradition, Summer 1971. (reprinted from Historic Long Island, 1902).
- M-55. Yeager, Edna H. "History of the Postal System." [Long Island Postal Service, part I.] Long Island Forum, Feb. 1972.
- M-56. Yoshpe, Harry B. Record of Slave Manumission in New York During the Colonial and Early National Periods. State Education Dept., Albany, N.Y. 12224. (pamphlet, 1971: reprinted from Journal of Negro History, Jan. 1941.)



SEE ALSO: A-30; B-21; B-53; B-58; C-117; C-123; C-127; C-142; C-166; D-4; E-5; F-4; F-6; F-9; H-3; J-4; J-19.

PUBLISHERS OF BOOKS CITED

Beacon Press 25 Beacon St. Boston, Ma. 02108

Bobbs - Merrill Co. 3 West 57th St. New York, N.Y. 10019

Christopher Press 35 Scio St. Rochester, N.Y. 14604

College and University Press 263 Chapel St.
New Haven, Conn. 06513

Columbia University Press 562 West 113 St.
New York, N.Y. 10025

Cornell University Press 124 Roberts Place Ithaca, N.Y. 14850

Da Capo Press 227 West 17th St. New York, N.Y. 10011

David McKay Co. 750 Third Ave. New York, N.Y. 10017

Doubleday & Co. Garden City, N.Y. 11530

Dover Publications 180 Varick St. New York, N.Y. 10014

Duane Waid Interlaken, N.Y. 14847

Edwards Brothers, Inc. Ann Arbor, Mich. 48104

Empire State Weeklies Webster, N.Y. 13669

George Braziller 1 Park Ave. New York, N.Y. 10016

Harper & Row 49 East 33rd St. New York, N.Y. 10017

Havens Press Wheatland, N.Y. 14546

Hoffman Foundation Wayne County Museum 21 Butternut St. Lyons, N.Y. 14489

Kellick 1605 Main St. Niagara Falls, N.Y. 14305

Kennikat Press, Inc. 90 South Bayles Ave. Port Washington, N.Y. 11050

Little, Brown & Co. 34 Beacon Press Boston, Ma. 02108

McCall Publishing Co. 230 Park Ave. New York, N.Y. 10017

New York University Press Washington Sq. New York, N.Y. 10003



Oxford University Press 200 Madison Ave.
New York, N. Y. 10016

Praeger
111 Fourth Ave.
New York, N. Y. 10003

Ryan Press Ogdensburg, N. Y. 13669

Schocken Paperbacks 67 Park Ave.
New York, N. Y. 10016

State University of New York at Albany Thurlow Terrace Albany, N. Y. 12201

Stein & Day 7 East 48th St. New York, N. Y. 10017 Syracuse University Press Box 8 University Station Syracuse, N. Y. 13210

Tundra Press
Montreal & Plattsburgh, N. Y.
12910

Union College Press Schenectady, N. Y. 12308

University of Washington Press Seattle, Wash. 98105

Wesleyan University Press Middletown, Conn. 06457

PUBLISHERS OF PERIODICALS CITED

Adirondack Life Adirondack Life Inc. Willsboro, N. Y. 12296

Adventures in Western New York
History
Buffalo and Erie County
Historical Society
25 Nottingham Ct.
Buffalo, N. Y. 14216

American Art Journal 20 East 56th St. New York, N. Y. 10022

American Heritage
American Heritage Publishing
Co.
551 Fifth Ave.
New York, N. Y. 10017

American History Illustrated National Historical Society 1206 Hanover St. Gettysburg, Pa. 17325 American Philosophical Society 104 South Fifth St. Philadelphia, Pa. 19106

Bulletin of the Fort Ticonderoga Museum Fort Ticonderoga Ticonderoga, N. Y. 12883

Bulletin of the New York Public Library Fifth Ave. and 42nd St. New York, N. Y. 10018

Catskill Daily Mail Catskill, N. Y. 12414

Chemung Historical Journal Chemung County Historical Society Inc. 204-William St. c/o Jerome Maltby Elmira, N. Y. 14904



The Correspondent
New York State American
Revolution Bicentennial
Commission
Office of State History
State Education Department
Albany, N. Y. 12210

The Courier
Syracuse University Press
Syracuse, N. Y. 13210

Daughters of the American Revolution Magazine Administration Building 1776 D St., N.W. Washington, D.C. 20006

De Halve Maen Holland Society of Ethnohistory University of Kentucky Lexington, Ky. 40506

Eagle-Bulletin and Dewitt News-Times 200 Brooklea Dr. DeWitt, N. Y. 13066

Freedomways
Freedomways Associates
799 Broadway
New York, N. Y. 10003

The Geographical Society of New York Broadway and 156th St. New York, N. Y. 10032

Historic Preservation
National Trust for Historic
Preservation
748 Jackson Pl.
Washington, D.C. 20006

History News 1315 Eighth Ave. S. Nashville, Tenn. 37203

Huntington Historical Society
Quarterly
P.O. Box 506
2 High St.
Huntington, N. Y. 11743

Jefferson County Historical Society Bulletin 228 Washington St. Watertown, N. Y. 13622

Journal of Negro History
The Association for the Study
of Negro Life and History, Inc.
1538 Ninth St. N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20001

Journal of the Society of Architectural Historians Box 94 Media, Pa. 19063

Knickerbocker News-Union Star 645 Albany-Shaker Road Albany, N. Y. 12201

Livingston County Leader Geneseo, N. Y. 14454

Long Island Forum
Box 215
West Islip, N. Y. 1175

The Mennissenk 138 Pike Street Port Jerwis, N. Y. 12771

Naho
New York State Museum and
Science Service
The University of the State
of New York
The State Education Department
Albany, N. Y. 12224

New York 207 East 32nd Street New York, N. Y. 10016

New York Folklore Quarterly
New York Folklore Society
c/o New York State Historical
Association
Cooperstown, N. Y. 13326

The New-York Historical Society Quarterly The New-York Historical Society Central Park West and 77th St. New York, N. Y. 10024



New York History New York Historical Society Cooperstown, N. Y. 13326

The New Yorker 25 West 43rd St. New York, N. Y. 10036

Niagara Frontier
Buffalo and Erie County
Historical Society
25 Nottingham Ct.
Buffalo, N. Y. 14216

Phylon
The Atlantic University
Review of Race Culture
Atlanta University
Atlanta, Ga. 30314

Quarterly of the St. Lawrence County Historical Association P.O. Box 8 Canton, N. Y. 13617

Rochester History Rochester Public Library 115 South Ave. Rochester, N. Y. 14604

Schoharie County Historical Review Schoharie County Historical Society Old Stone Fort, Main St. c/o Clifford G. Fisher Schoharie, N. Y. 12157

The Staten Island Historian Staten Island Historical Society Court and Center Sts. c/o Loring McMillen Staten Island, N. Y. 10304

The Westchester Historian
Westchester County Historical
Society
43 Read Ave.
c/o Mrs. Amos Strubble
Tuckahoe, N. Y. 10707

Western Pennsylvania Historical Magazine 4338 Bigelow Boulevard Pittsburg, Pa. 14213

William and Mary Quarterly Institute of Early American History and Culture Williamsburg, Va. 23185

Yesteryears 120 Fernpark Drive Camillus, N. Y. 13031

York State Tradition Saranac, N. Y. 12981

The Yorker
New York State Historical
Association
Cooperstown, N. Y. 12236

